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          2  without causing the quality of life havoc that it is

          3  going to cause.

          4                 There is a problem with secondhand

          5  smoke, there is no denial of that, but this is not a

          6  proper solution to this problem. You are creating

          7  standing outdoor smoking cafes by passage of this

          8  bill, but they're not bounded by chairs, they're not

          9  regulated, you're just going to have a bunch of

         10  people. The gentleman from the Red Line, we computed

         11  yesterday when we were sitting down with your Chief

         12  of Staff, we computed 60 people an our will be

         13  outside of his bar alone. Based on the number of

         14  people that come into his bar, how many times he

         15  turns those people over, and the percentage of

         16  people that smoke.

         17                 This is the problem. There are

         18  different alternatives, but the Mayor wants to ram

         19  this down the City Council's throat, and I applaud

         20  the people who are stopping and saying, hey, wait a

         21  minute, the City Council is the City Council and

         22  we're not going to take orders directly from the

         23  Mayor. I applaud that, and I tell you there are

         24  alternatives which I would like to suggest. I don't

         25  know if I have the time in my three minutes to
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          2  suggest them, but I would like to suggest them.

          3                 The testimony that Dan Doctoroff

          4  gave, I'm a pretty smart person with numbers, I

          5  think that testimony was doctored.

          6                 I believe he knows how to keep his

          7  job. I believe he's comparing apples and oranges. I

          8  do not agree with that economic testimony that he

          9  gave.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 Go ahead.

         13                 MR. SHERMAN: Chairwoman Quinn, other

         14  members of the Council, I believe that's still the

         15  proper way to address you. I don't do this regularly

         16  like other people. With liberty and justice for all,

         17  I guess, we know, but that goes for all the

         18  tolerance that we as a nation can bring to every

         19  kind of group and every kind of idea, except for

         20  smokers.

         21                 I am amazed that I am the only person

         22  in the tobacco business here today that's speaking,

         23  and I'm not going to speak about the economic

         24  issues, I think it's obvious. With the loss of more

         25  jobs, all of those people who supposed are unhappy

                                                            178

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  to work in bars where smoking is permitted, there

          3  won't be the bars for them to work in, they don't

          4  have to worry about it.

          5                 But what I am speaking about is I

          6  think reality, and a victriolic attack on an

          7  industry and an industry I am proud of, because I am

          8  proud to be a New Yorker all my life, and we have

          9  been a New York tobacco company for over 70 years.

         10                 If you take the numbers that are

         11  given you, I think as New Yorkers you're too smart

         12  to be bamboozled. If you add up the numbers there's

         13  no way that anybody in this country would be

         14  standing, living anymore if everybody was accused of

         15  dying of smoking or secondhand smoke happened.

         16                 In addition, if you take the fact

         17  that the carcinogenic affect of secondhand smoke is

         18  1.29, that is definitely a factor. It is somewhat

         19  less than what is considered inconsequential and

         20  about half of that of milk. So, how all of a sudden

         21  1,000 people die from this somewhat innocuous

         22  product, is quite strange to me.

         23                 And I feel for the doctor, and the

         24  passion that is given by some of the people who said

         25  that he feels terrible having to tell someone that
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          2  they are dying of cancer from secondhand smoke, but

          3  how does he know that it was secondhand smoke?

          4  There's no way of measuring it. He doesn't take into

          5  it confounding other effects, and in fact, it is a

          6  matter of a group of people who either want to

          7  control what we do and tell us what to do and take

          8  away our freedom, and if this freedom is taken away,

          9  what comes next? Again, liberty and justice for all,

         10  justice was an early victim of the tobacco wars.

         11                 It is difficult to hear my industry

         12  pillaried and made a political football. I think

         13  that freedom of choice is a key product of our

         14  American liberties, and I don't think the entire

         15  bill should be considered inasmuch as it's people

         16  should be able to make a choice and do as they wish

         17  of their own volition.

         18                 Again, forgive me. I don't speak at

         19  these things, I just had to say my piece because I'm

         20  proud of my industry and I'm also very proud of my

         21  City and would like to see it stay that way.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 MR. GIANNONE: My name is Jim

         24  Giannone, I'm owner of a neighborhood bar. And I've

         25  heard a lot of arguments today, and it seems there's
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          2  a lot of focus on what the intent is not of this law

          3  to prohibit smoking. I hear a lot of arguments that

          4  direct themselves towards that, but rather to

          5  protect the workplace from secondhand smoke, and

          6  we're a nation of choice and we have choices to make

          7  everyday. The neighborhood bar and the bar business

          8  is a very unique setting. We serve a beverage that's

          9  got a warning label on it. We smoke cigarettes, it's

         10  got a warning label on it. Yet we choose to do those

         11  things, the choice is ours. No one puts a gun to our

         12  head, we know that coming home from a hard day's

         13  work or whatever we've done, the distress of the

         14  workplace, nothing like having a nice drink sitting

         15  down and relaxing. Some people find that a cigarette

         16  makes that relaxation even better.

         17                 The workers that are in the workplace

         18  in my particular place, I speak for my own

         19  establishment, I don't have a worker that doesn't

         20  smoke. If I did have a worker that didn't smoke, we

         21  do have areas that we provide space that are

         22  smoke-free. We have a smoke-free dining area. We

         23  have a room that is smoke-free. The workers that

         24  come to us for jobs have a choice, too. They don't

         25  have to work in that environment. If you put us out
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          2  of business by enacting a law that enforces us to

          3  discourage our following, our customers, from

          4  patronizing our establishment, that worker who

          5  you're looking to protect doesn't need protection,

          6  he's out of a job. Because I can't struggle for a

          7  year, a year and a half, two years or three years to

          8  prove that your law is good or bad. After three

          9  years you're going to re-evaluate it. I may not be

         10  in business three years from today. I may be out of

         11  business in six months or a year. The worker who is

         12  a non-smoker and can't tolerate secondhand smoke,

         13  he's got no decision to make at all. He's out of a

         14  job. I don't think that's the intent of this law

         15  either.

         16                 I'm sure there are alternatives, the

         17  gentleman to my far right, I would have liked to

         18  hear more of him. I would have liked to maybe get a

         19  copy of his statement. But certainly I think that

         20  the neighborhood bars in some way should have

         21  consideration to grandfathering as you've given or

         22  seen fit to give to the cigar bars. And I also think

         23  that establishments should be designated with some

         24  sort of signage that would show they either are a

         25  smoking establishment or a non-smoking
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          2  establishment, and the patrons then have a choice.

          3  You don't want to go into a smoking establishment?

          4  Stay out. You want to have a cigarette? You're

          5  welcome to come in. Those that don't want to smoke,

          6  my place is not for you. Go somewhere else.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          8                 This is the most time limit abiding

          9  panel so far.

         10                 MR. DOBRIAN: Madam Chair, my name is

         11  Joseph Dobrian, and I am a bachelor. I am a lonely

         12  man and a solitary man, and it's my pleasure to sit

         13  in a bar of an evening enjoying a martini and a

         14  cigarette and chatting with whomever happens to be

         15  sitting near me.

         16                 There's a delightful rhythm to this

         17  ritual. You sip your drink, you take a drag, and you

         18  savor the deliciousness of the combination.

         19                 For many of us, the acts of drinking

         20  and smoking are inseparable. Accordingly, if this

         21  bill is passed, I will never set foot in a bar

         22  again. For God sake, counselors, do not be fooled by

         23  the big lie that this is a bill about public safety.

         24  Anti-smoking fanatics have cynically fabricated and

         25  marketed the spurious concept of the dangers of
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          2  second-hand smoke, and they have used the classic

          3  propagandas trick, repeat the big lie loudly enough

          4  and often enough and it will be believed.

          5                 Now, it's a common human failing to

          6  actually hate people who make lifestyle choices

          7  which we disapprove. The sight of a teenager

          8  behaving obstreperously, or a grossly overweight

          9  person enjoying an ice cream, or a flamboyant

         10  homosexual camping it up, these all trigger a

         11  visceral, violent rage and loathing, a loathing

         12  which in some perverse way feels good. It's this

         13  vicious hatred of smokers, this sadistic, this

         14  almost erotic hatred that has triggered this

         15  malicious legislation. About this bill, counselors,

         16  there is a sly and cowardly form of what the Germans

         17  call "shoddenfreud" a feeling of joy caused by the

         18  discomfort of others. The people pushing this bill

         19  are practically drooling with ecstasy at the idea

         20  that slobs like me won't be able to sit in a bar and

         21  enjoy a cigarette.

         22                 If you doubt me, listen to the

         23  remarks of Nassau County legislator Roger Corbin,

         24  commenting on what he hopes will be the outcome of

         25  this legislation. He says, "if you're downstate,
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          2  you're not going to be able to smoke anywhere but in

          3  your closet." If we stop the places in which you can

          4  smoke, the smokers may not find it very appealing to

          5  smoke.

          6                 Can't you just see this man rubbing

          7  his hands with glee as he says this, and maybe a

          8  little blob of spit forming at the corner of his

          9  mouth as he contemplates how he's going to stick it

         10  to smokers? These are the kind of people who are

         11  pushing this legislation, and I know all too well

         12  that they may have bullied and intimidated you into

         13  voting for it. But counselors, you are entrusted

         14  with safeguarding the freedom of all your

         15  constituents. Do not, I conjure you, allow a small

         16  contingent of haters to employ legislation as an

         17  instrument of spite. Send this bill to hell where it

         18  belongs.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I just want to

         20  apologize to the other three panelists. Had I known

         21  that the fourth panelist's comments were going to be

         22  as offensive as they were, I would not have put him

         23  on a panel with other proponents, and I hope those

         24  who are still here will not hold the comments of

         25  this one individual which I found to be offensive
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          2  against those who have made, although I obviously

          3  don't agree with them, made some very thoughtful and

          4  responsible opposing comments today and in the other

          5  hearings.

          6                 I'd like to hear from the next panel

          7  now, please.

          8                 Oh, I'm sorry, Council Member Sears

          9  has a question.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: I just want to

         11  thank Jim Giannone for coming. You're comments were

         12  very sound and reasonable, and thank you, because I

         13  know you've all had a long wait. So, I'm glad that

         14  you came.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. And,

         16  again, I apologize.

         17                 Joel Shufro. I'm sorry if I'm

         18  mispronouncing that. Anita Thacher. Peter Chen.

         19  Albert Hsu. That group will be followed by Bob

         20  Armstrong, Dan Kelly, Steve Helfer and Maria Ross.

         21                 I guess the fourth person may have

         22  had to leave.

         23                 Are you Joel? Okay, go right ahead.

         24                 MR. HSU: Thank you, Madam Chair.

         25  Happy Friday the 13th to you all. Before I start, I
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          2  would also like to thank Councilman Stewart and

          3  Councilwoman Sears for staying to hear our

          4  testimony.

          5                 My name is Albert Hsu, and I am MD,

          6  PhD at the Albert Einstein College of Medicine. I am

          7  a member of the Medical Society of the State of New

          8  York Task Force on Tobacco, as well as a formal

          9  national president of the Asian Pacific American

         10  Medical Student Association.

         11                 I'm here to give you some news. Last

         12  week at a meeting of the American Medical

         13  Association in New Orleans, 50,000 students voted to

         14  establish smoke-free workplaces as their top

         15  national public health priority. The AMA Physician

         16  House of Delegates approved resolutions to update

         17  their model ordinance on their website to not only

         18  ban smoking in restaurants, but also in bars and

         19  nightclubs as well.

         20                 Our AMA also now encourages

         21  individual physicians, residents and medical

         22  students, as well as medical schools, clinics and

         23  hospitals to participate in smoke-free workplaces

         24  campaign.

         25                 Dr. Frieden reported that Japan,
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          2  Italy and Norway are all taking steps to protect

          3  workers from the dangers of secondhand smoke. In the

          4  press we've heard about Ireland as well as Boston,

          5  Chicago, Denver and Albuquerque. My physician

          6  friends have said that even Lincoln, Nebraska is now

          7  looking to go smoke-free.

          8                 Next year Florida needs to enact

          9  enabling legislation with penalties and enforcement

         10  of their recently passed constitutional amendment to

         11  ban smoking in all restaurants.

         12                 We are at the crest of a tidal wave,

         13  which is exciting, important and historic. For those

         14  of you who have been supporting this resolution,

         15  thank you. For those who have been opposing, we ask

         16  you to reconsider, and please consider abstaining as

         17  opposed to doing a no vote.

         18                 In answer to Councilwoman Clarke's

         19  concerns, I agree this bill is not perfect, but the

         20  default after this bill will be that restaurants and

         21  bars will be non-smoking. So please vote yes.

         22                 As you heard at the last hearing from

         23  the former LA City Council President, not a single

         24  City Councilperson who voted for smoke-free

         25  workplaces lost their re-election bid. We cannot say
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          2  the same for those who voted against smoke-free

          3  workplaces. Secondhand smoke kills and every New

          4  Yorker deserves a smoke free workplace. On behalf of

          5  the countless medical students who could not be here

          6  to give testimony today, I look forward to your

          7  support in the vote on Intro. 256-A. Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         10                 Go right ahead.

         11                 MS. THACHER: My name is Anita

         12  Thacher, and thank you very much, Councilwoman Quinn

         13  and Councilwoman Sears, thank you very much for

         14  staying.

         15                 I'm here to represent myself and

         16  possibly other people who reside above bars and

         17  restaurants where there is smoking.

         18                 I live in District CB 3, and

         19  actually, while they opposed this legislation, we've

         20  asked them to reopen it for consideration again, and

         21  they're going to do so this Tuesday, so we're going

         22  to appear before them as individual, I'm an

         23  individual.

         24                 I am speaking for people who possibly

         25  have children who live above bars and restaurants,
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          2  as well as myself and my husband.

          3                 When we come home at night, we walk

          4  into a smoke-filled room in our apartment. The bar

          5  below us has all kinds of proper ventilation. It

          6  doesn't help. We live in an old building. Many bars

          7  in the East Village, and I assume in Queens as well,

          8  have that kind of situation. The problem is that

          9  it's not even the bar owners who are doing this.

         10  They don't smoke, a lot of them, but when there's

         11  competition from places where smoking is permitted,

         12  they can't individually stop smoking in their bars.

         13  This is a specious argument, why didn't you stop,

         14  you know, smoking in your bar? Well, you know, if

         15  they do and they are people who smoke, they'll get

         16  to go to the other bars where there's smoking

         17  permitted.

         18                 If it's across the board ban, then

         19  they'll all be able to abide by it.

         20                 I'm concerned about this one

         21  concession in the legislation that's going to allow

         22  for these rooms where smoking is permitted in bars.

         23                 My concern is the actual -- it goes

         24  beyond just the health of the workers, but the

         25  health still of those people who attend the bars.
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          2                 As long as there's this kind of --

          3  and this is actually for Councilman Stewart, because

          4  he was concerned about this I think, as long as

          5  there is a place in a bar where people can go and

          6  smoke, the door is going to keep open and close,

          7  open and close, open and close. This is really not

          8  going to be an effective thing, to my mind.

          9                 I'm not going to oppose the

         10  legislation because of it, but I just think that it

         11  has to be taken into consideration, when considering

         12  that one concession.

         13                 The other concession seem to me to be

         14  quite reasonable. Again, I'm an individual, I'm not

         15  speaking for anybody else. It's just my opinion. I'm

         16  hopeful that in three years that section, if it is

         17  passed in this particular way, will be revisited,

         18  and you'll look at the other issues involved.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 MR. CHEN: Hi. My name is Peter Chen.

         21  Today I come as a fellow New Yorker, and as a

         22  medical student at NYU School of Medicine, and I

         23  speak in support of 256-A, the Smoke Free Work

         24  Places bill, but would like to raise grave concerns

         25  on the compromises.
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          2                 One of these compromises is creating

          3  a smoking section, but this idea is tantamount to

          4  creating a urinating section in a swimming pool.

          5  I've been to such a bar in Toronto, and it simply

          6  does work. Smokers will light up in the non-smoking

          7  side as they cross into the smoking side.

          8                 They also draw in their last puff in

          9  the smoking side and exhale as they cross to the

         10  non-smoking side.

         11                 The smokers go to the non-smoking

         12  side because that is where the attractive patrons

         13  are, whereas the smoking section is left with fellow

         14  smokers with yellow teeth, premature wrinkled skin

         15  and the stagnant smell of smoke.

         16                 So, the smokers keep traveling to the

         17  non-smoking area and bring with them these EPA

         18  classified type A carcinogens for which there is no

         19  such thing as a safe low dose. Let me repeat that

         20  again. These carcinogens, there is no such thing as

         21  a safe low dose.

         22                 Having this movement of smokers back

         23  and forth between the smoking and non-smoking

         24  section will not contain the smoke in the smoking

         25  section.

                                                            192

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 The smoke will travel into the lungs

          3  of the workers in the non-smoking area. Finally, the

          4  workers also have to work in the smoking side to

          5  clear out the ashtrays, pick up the drink glasses

          6  and sweep up the cigarette butts.

          7                 I speak against smoking rooms for the

          8  same reason I speak against the peeing section in

          9  the swimming pool.

         10                 The focus of this debate is on

         11  workers' rights to a smoke-free workplace. This

         12  notion is predicated on the right to health. Yet,

         13  cigarettes and other tobacco products are the only

         14  products that when used as instructed can kill the

         15  consumer. That when used as instructed can kill the

         16  consumer.

         17                 So, if we support the idea that cigar

         18  bars, which sell lethal products can allow their

         19  uses in the store, should we also support firearms

         20  shops to allow customers to use guns in the store?

         21                 I realize that because of the undue

         22  influence the tobacco industry has, and obscene

         23  amounts of money they have dumped to sponsor the

         24  anti-health testifiers, we have restored to

         25  compromises. But even with the compromises from this
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          2  bill, I hope the Council members will at least pass

          3  this act, but bear in mind that even stronger laws

          4  should be enacted in the future. Why? Because,

          5  frankly, I'm already amused that society essentially

          6  supports the notion of suicide by allowing smoking,

          7  but at the very least, we shouldn't condone the

          8  imposition of murder on the sufferers of secondhand

          9  smoke which contain byproducts that kill.

         10                 Yes, we live in a government of the

         11  people by the people and for the people, not in a

         12  government of RJ Reynolds, by RJ Reynolds and for RJ

         13  Reynolds.

         14                 Stand your ground, Council members,

         15  and don't let the smoke and mirrors amendment stop

         16  you from passing what you need to pass now and in

         17  the future.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Next we're going to hear from Bob

         21  Armstrong, Dan Kelly, Stephen Helfer and Maria Ross.

         22                 To be followed by Heidi Silverstone,

         23  Russell Sciandra, Peter Leahey, and Seymore

         24  Grayson.

         25                 Is Maria Ross still here? Is Thomas
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          2  Slattory still here?

          3                 MR. SLATTORY: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, Mr.

          5  Slattory, why don't you join this panel then.

          6                 I'm sorry, is Mr. Slattory still

          7  here?

          8                 MR. SLATTORY: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Oh, he's coming

         10  down.

         11                 Well, we'll start while he's coming

         12  down then. Okay.

         13                 MR. HELFER: My name is Stephen Helfer

         14  and I would like to thank the Council for spending

         15  so much time and deliberation.

         16                 Councilor Quinn (sic), I think you've

         17  done a great job here. But in fairness, I think

         18  there have been comments made on the other side that

         19  are perhaps equally as offensive as you may have

         20  found the comments made by a previous panelist.

         21                 I'm a law-abiding citizen and I

         22  smoke. I pay taxes for about 40 years, 45 years, and

         23  when I look for a place to smoke, there are very few

         24  places. It's very hard for me to find a place to

         25  smoke, especially restaurants. Wherever I go to a
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          2  restaurant, it's non-smoking, it seems to me.

          3                 So, bars are the last places I go and

          4  people like me go, and usually I feel pretty well

          5  accepted there.

          6                 Mr. Valeri accused me of murder, I

          7  guess, by smoking in his presence. I'll tell you, I

          8  really cannot enjoy a cigarette if there's someone

          9  close to me who feels discomforted by it. I just, I

         10  can't enjoy it.

         11                 You know, New York's economy is

         12  really hurting. There are thousands of homeless

         13  people in the streets. I read an article by a

         14  previous department, Fire Department official, who

         15  said there were 2,000 buildings in New York,

         16  highrise buildings which need antennas to further

         17  strengthen radio signals to protect fireworkers, or

         18  firemen. These are things that all New Yorkers,

         19  smokers, non-smokers, Council members, bar owners,

         20  agree should be worked on. We can all agree together

         21  on this. Why is it that the Mayor takes an issue

         22  which is so divisive, I mean there are people here

         23  on the other side of the issue who feel very

         24  strongly, I confess I feel very strongly, but why do

         25  we take an issue that is so divisive when New York
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          2  is experiencing so many difficulties? Can't we work

          3  on those things we agree on, such as homelessness,

          4  poverty, safeness for firefighters, and the economy.

          5                 You know there was a restaurant

          6  person here today who said she was afraid that if

          7  she told her guests that they couldn't smoke there,

          8  they would feel insulted, and I recognize that that

          9  is a problem.

         10                 But there are restaurant owners, I

         11  spoke to Councilor Stewart (sic) the last time, who

         12  have operated small establishments for two or three

         13  generations where their employees smoke, they are

         14  blue collar bars, and their customers smoke. When

         15  you make this law, and I hope you don't, I hope you

         16  reconsider it, how do you think all those people are

         17  going to feel? They're going to feel very hurt by

         18  the City of New York in which they live, in which

         19  they feel so kindly to.

         20                 I really urge you, if I may make one

         21  last comment?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's fine, sure.

         23                 MR. HELFER: And Senator George

         24  McGovern -- and as I said, I respect those on the

         25  other side of the issue, but he said the new
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          2  paternalism is taking away our rights to make our

          3  own decisions. And George McGovern is very thinking

          4  of all people in society, and I hope you are too, as

          5  I am sure you are.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Is that

          8  on?

          9                 MR. KELLY: Good afternoon. My name is

         10  Dan Kelly, and my family owns one of these small

         11  local pubs that we have heard about this afternoon.

         12                 This is New York City, perhaps the

         13  greatest City in the country, because of the dynamic

         14  of all the different cultures we have from

         15  immigrants who have come to this country for

         16  freedoms not found in most other countries.

         17                 One of the biggest freedoms is that

         18  of the freedom of choice, which this bill is

         19  ultimately against, and is simply an act of

         20  dictatorship.

         21                 We have shown today that employees

         22  have the right and freedom to choose to work in

         23  smoke free or smoking bars, so why the need for a

         24  law?

         25                 If the employees of the soon to be
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          2  exempt cigar bars can choose to work in such a

          3  smoke-infested place, why can't my employees make

          4  that same choice? As for patrons of these places,

          5  they can choose to go into or not go into smoking

          6  bars. They want to simply hang out in non-smoking

          7  places? Fine. They are not forced by anyone to stay

          8  in a smoky place. I'm sorry if they feel that

          9  they're missing out on any fun, but then again, it's

         10  their choice and their freedom to choose.

         11                 As a small business owner, I do not

         12  get the freedom of choice. I cannot choose to cater

         13  my business to the 80 percent of my clients that

         14  smoke. I cannot ask my employees to agree to work in

         15  a smoking bar. As an entrepreneur, I'm not allowed

         16  to open a new cigar bar, which happens to be a

         17  trend. And now, as an owner/operator, I guess I'm

         18  not allowed the freedom of taking a vacation,

         19  considering the fact that as an owner/operator I'd

         20  have to be there every hour of the day.

         21                 This bill today is about the

         22  amendments that were made to the original, and in

         23  any way, shape or form does it create a level

         24  playing field. One of our suggestions that was

         25  brought up by the President of the Brooklyn Queens
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          2  Tavern Owners Association, Richie Christie, in a

          3  letter that I know he sent to all Council members in

          4  regards to air pollution and new modern effective

          5  equipment, to come see what it is that we're

          6  proposing, putting in these new units, and yet we're

          7  yet to hear from any Council members in coming to

          8  this and observing for yourself.

          9                 The other amendments, seven to ten

         10  bars in Manhattan are allowed to do something that

         11  everyone else can't? How is that level playing

         12  field?

         13                 Let cigar bars only sell cigars. Now

         14  that's level. You want to smoke? Fine, smoke there.

         15  If you want to drink, come to me. That, you know,

         16  but something tells me that perhaps Mayor Bloomberg

         17  and his buddies wouldn't really agree to that

         18  because where else would they sip their cognac and

         19  smoke their cigars?

         20                 As for membership halls, perhaps

         21  they're not here in the City as frequently, but in

         22  the boroughs where the blue collar civilian servants

         23  that keep this City alive live, they're all over the

         24  place. And it is those same civil workers that are

         25  the veterans and members that are entitled
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          2  membership to these halls. You can bet they will get

          3  a kick out of doing bartender shifts while my staff

          4  has to take their place in the unemployment line.

          5                 I'm an owner/operator, like I said,

          6  in order to do that exemption, I would have to fire

          7  my entire staff and put in about roughly, anywhere

          8  from about 140 to 150 hours a week. Or maybe I

          9  should bring my 65-year-old father out of

         10  retirement. Perhaps I can get him to die of a heart

         11  attack, you know, before his time.

         12                 Is this bill for employees, or is it

         13  for the patrons? I thought employees and that's why

         14  each one of mine has signed a petition against this

         15  bill.

         16                 As for the patrons, like one of the

         17  gentlemen before me had said, if you don't like

         18  smoke, fine, don't come to my place, I'll deal with

         19  the people that do like smoke.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         21                 MR. SLATTORY: My name is Thomas

         22  Slattory. I've served on more associations in my 50

         23  years of business. I seldom speak for myself,

         24  because of my voice is not that easy to listen to. I

         25  hope I don't bore you, but some of these items, I
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          2  have to really express my disappointment and my

          3  thoughts on the spin that so many of these

          4  statistics that are coming out today are

          5  outrageously funny, if it wasn't such a serious

          6  thing staying in business.

          7                 In 1987 to 1990, we experienced the

          8  worst recession in the restaurant tavern industry.

          9  By 1990 we were at our lowest peak, 25 percent of

         10  the locations were closed and no one was moving into

         11  them. That particular year Mayor Dinkins took

         12  office, four months down the road he realized he had

         13  a crises with the budget. A 25 percent shortfall in

         14  sales tax. No one told him that same figure was the

         15  same figure we closed.

         16                 We didn't affect the employment line

         17  much, because most of our employees worked two or

         18  three jobs. They're full-time employees and

         19  part-time restaurant employees. They have the

         20  choice, that income that they spend is very

         21  important to the City. Because they lose when we

         22  close, is also very important.

         23                 I was in California in August. I

         24  personally spoke to 20 people in San Francisco doing

         25  what I do most, bar hopping, when I'm in someone
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          2  else's city. I ran into 20 people that have lost

          3  their fortune. So I don't know where the random

          4  selection or the research was performed by the

          5  gentleman earlier, the Deputy Mayor and that

          6  Councilman.

          7                 We have a limited window of

          8  opportunity to do business. The crowd in New York

          9  moves in areas by hours, uptown, downtown, midtown,

         10  they have vital hours, four, five hours the most, to

         11  do their necessary business, and sometimes only two

         12  days, really important days a week.

         13                 When you've got that window of

         14  opportunity down, by putting the employee -- I'm

         15  sorry -- the customers outside on the street, I ask

         16  you, how much money can anyone spend inside if

         17  they're standing outside?

         18                 If they're out there for half the

         19  night we've lost half the money we should have taken

         20  in. Please give this real serious thought. There are

         21  other ways of doing it. Eliminate all visible smoke

         22  by requiring smoke-eaters, which I put in my store

         23  voluntarily in '77, with the help of my employees,

         24  and of my 50 years of business, and I'm out in the

         25  street more than any other individual in the
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          2  industry, seven days a week, I was even quoted in

          3  the times or given the title "professional drinker,"

          4  and I don't deny it. But in my 50 years I've only

          5  met two people, two, that contracted lung cancer,

          6  one died, heavy smoker. Another one a heavy smoker,

          7  survived the lung operation and died 35 years later.

          8  Those are the only two. I surely would have seen

          9  evidence if they were killing them by the thousands.

         10                 Thank you for your time.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         12                 MR. ARMSTRONG: Hi. In the 18 years

         13  I've been in the neighborhood, this is the first

         14  time I've ever been in this building. My name is Bob

         15  Armstrong. I am the Manhattan libertarian dad, the

         16  drug affairs director. I live over by the Fish

         17  Market and am what might be called a mathematical

         18  programmer. I can find -- you can find this material

         19  on my website cosy, along c-o-s-y.com, along with

         20  links to other freedom resources like ny.lp.org, and

         21  some views of dawn over the Brooklyn and Manhattan

         22  Bridges and a mathematical form of aspire to rise

         23  above the hole over here, a lot of other things.

         24                 Given that only a handful of you have

         25  the courage or duty to face those of us whose
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          2  freedom you want to abridge, I will address my

          3  comment to that I have history that is recording

          4  this, as a warning to the still free people of other

          5  capitals of the world, a warning of what is

          6  happening behind the back of Lady Liberty, the

          7  ever-encroaching grasp of the nanny police state,

          8  who will now be sending secret police into places

          9  where an attackable minority seeked to get together

         10  in pursuit of their individual happiness.

         11                 I'll admit, I don't know how to get

         12  through to our absent political masters. I would

         13  think it would give them pause that ordinary people

         14  have come before you and simply quoted from the

         15  founding documents of our fragile and crumbling

         16  experiment and liberty, no effect for these more

         17  equal do-gooders, these documents are dead.

         18                 This is a very simple logical

         19  situation, choice versus force. This Bloomberg-led

         20  gang plans to extend the drug war, coercing or

         21  criminalizing a huge number more of their fellow

         22  citizens. And in the process they shred not only our

         23  right to property and our freedoms of association

         24  and privacy, the rationality itself. I saw Bloomberg

         25  claim this law will save 1,000 lives per year. Hog
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          2  wash. There are only 40,000 deaths under the age of

          3  85 in this City each year. Actually computing from

          4  numbers that I heard earlier, I come with an

          5  estimate based on these ridiculous rates of

          6  secondhand effect they might have between three and

          7  16 people.

          8                 It makes me question the analytics

          9  produced by his company. It makes it more

         10  understandable how things like Enron can go

         11  unnoticed. All of this arrogant tyrannical idiosy is

         12  of course great for the Libertarian Party. Two years

         13  ago there was no Manhattan Libertarian Party, now it

         14  is the thriving and active and carrying on the most

         15  vibrant political conversation on the web.

         16                 One of our new members Andrea Schnell

         17  has done an amazing job putting together a speech

         18  fest all afternoon in Union Square this Sunday,

         19  December 15th, celebrating Bill of Rights Day. Get

         20  there to hear. Get there to speak.

         21                 Finally, let me describe one

         22  business. One of the businesses you are about to

         23  kill. Two days after 9/11 I headed north to find

         24  some place with electricity which had a television.

         25  I ended up at Tony's on Mulberry, a landmark in
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          2  Little Italy, which I had passed many times but

          3  never gone in.

          4                 I'm a cigar smoker. Tony is an old

          5  cigar smoker. On the walls are characters of him

          6  serving Marilyn Monroe, photos of him with Frank

          7  Sinatra, with Ronald Regan, and a fantastic oil of

          8  just the bar scene and so forth, from maybe the

          9  forties or something, I don't know. Always, always

         10  in all of these pictures he's, Tony is there with a

         11  cigar in his mouth. To tell this old man that he

         12  cannot smoke his cigar in his bar which he inherited

         13  from his father is a crime. For the sake of domestic

         14  tranquility and prosperity, stop this insane drive

         15  to control other people's lives.

         16                 You're not our superior.

         17  Demonstrations in the street is the best you can

         18  hope for.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You're going to

         20  need to sum up. Thank you.

         21                 MR. ARMSTRONG: That was it. Thank

         22  you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You might have

         24  noticed the last witness had a little bit more time,

         25  I forgot to hit the start button. But I didn't want
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          2  to penalize you for my mistake, in case people

          3  thought they were losing their sense of time, after

          4  having been in this room so long.

          5                 Council Member Stewart.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Gentlemen,

          7  I'm trying to get your rationale for opposing this

          8  bill, and most of you have said that the workers

          9  should try to find another job, if they don't -- if

         10  they don't want to be among the smokers, and I can't

         11  figure out where you're coming from.

         12                 Are you saying that the laws that we

         13  have enacted to control emissions, because diesel,

         14  you know that diesel is much cheaper, et cetera,

         15  that is the use of diesel, et cetera, you think that

         16  we shouldn't enforce those laws? Are you saying

         17  basically that the laws that we have enacted to deal

         18  with asbestos, because asbestos is basically a good

         19  insulator for heat, we should not have done that?

         20  Are you saying basically that the folks who used to

         21  in the past dump toxic waste in the bay, near to the

         22  beaches, that these companies should be allowed to

         23  do that, to dump this toxic waste, because if

         24  someone wants to use that beach they can go to some

         25  place else, if they need to use the beach they can
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          2  go someplace else? Are you saying that?

          3                 Because if you're saying that when

          4  someone wants a job, and they feel they should move

          5  onto another job, basically you're telling me all

          6  these things I've mentioned, and I don't see the

          7  rationale for your argument.

          8                 MR. KELLY: What my argument is is

          9  that there are inherent risks with every job. A

         10  fireman goes to work every day with the inherent

         11  risk that he may get burned, a policeman that he may

         12  get shot. These are an inherent risk of the job you

         13  take on, and the inherent risk of working in a bar

         14  is, yes, you're exposed to secondhand smoke. You say

         15  toxic waste. Who cleans up toxic waste? There are

         16  people that take in the job with the inherent risk

         17  that they may be exposed to certain chemicals that

         18  could be very detrimental to their health, but they

         19  take on that job and they get paid hazardous

         20  amounts, you know, accordingly. So, there are

         21  inherent risks associated, and when you go into a

         22  job knowing the inherent risk of that job, you can

         23  either accept that job, or you cannot accept that

         24  job. That is my argument.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But we create

                                                            209

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  the laws to protect that beach. We did not say,

          3  listen, find another beach to go to. We didn't do

          4  that. We create laws so they can't dump there.

          5                 MR. KELLY:  And who cleans it? Who

          6  cleans up that dump?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: We are not

          8  saying that you can't smoke. All we are saying

          9  basically that we're trying to protect the workers,

         10  and you are telling me now if that worker don't like

         11  it, they should find another place.

         12                 MR. KELLY: All right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And that

         14  argument does not hold with me. Are you saying that

         15  the emission with the cars, we should not -- the

         16  people who want to use, mix gasoline with some

         17  cheaper fuel, and you're saying that we can allow

         18  them to do that? That's what you're saying?

         19                 MR. KELLY: Should we stop the

         20  shipment of oil because sometimes when oil tankers

         21  break there's a spill and there's a clean-up needed?

         22  You're trying to -- which came first, the chicken or

         23  the egg?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But your

         25  argument does not equate. It does not equate --
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          2                 MR. KELLY: What doesn't equate to the

          3  fact that there are inherent risks with certain

          4  jobs?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sir, you know

          6  what? Wait. Let the Council Member make his

          7  questions or statements and then you respond. If you

          8  can just avoid cutting each other off.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What I'm

         10  trying to say, sir, is basically this: There are

         11  laws to protect the public, and with those laws, we

         12  know there is inherent risk with some jobs, at the

         13  same time you do not -- we have to create these laws

         14  to protect the workers, and you can't say because

         15  someone works in a bar and there is smoke there,

         16  they must find another job. It's the same thing by

         17  saying if you create, if someone has been dumping in

         18  the beach all these years, that we should create

         19  laws to protect that beach so that other people can

         20  get to use it, or so that we don't have that kind of

         21  a problem. And that's what I'm saying. And your

         22  rationale, it does not hold, so that's what I was

         23  trying to bring forward before.

         24                 MR. KELLY: One final statement to

         25  that. People that are using that beach and so forth,
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          2  they don't have a choice against this contamination

          3  and things like that. People have the choice whether

          4  or not to be around the smoke or to not be around

          5  the smoke, the same way that that worker has the

          6  choice to take on the inherent risk of working in a

          7  smoke environment or to go to an establishment that

          8  is smoke-free, which is shown today, you have a list

          9  in front of you of the thousands of establishments

         10  throughout New York City and the boroughs of New

         11  York that are 100 percent smoke-free. So there are

         12  choices out there. The same way that if a law

         13  student comes out, he's not guaranteed to go work in

         14  a top law firm. There are certain restrictions and

         15  qualifications for every job and inherent risk for

         16  every job, that's what I'm stating.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The gentleman at

         18  the end of the panel wanted to add something.

         19                 MR. ARMSTRONG: The observation since

         20  I've been here is I really am a little amazed that

         21  apparently smokers make a lot of money because

         22  they're spending a lot more money in these places so

         23  that non-smokers feel that they have to go to

         24  smoking bars to get well paid, you know, good-paying

         25  jobs. I really am amazed by that.
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          2                 But really most fundamentally, a

          3  very, you know, an absolute foundation of our

          4  freedom is the notion that individuals can have

          5  private property, just absolutely foundational, and

          6  in economics there's a distinction between private

          7  property over which the owner has dominion, so that

          8  you have, if you will, a man's home is his castle. A

          9  man's business is his business. In the case of

         10  Tony's place, it's a business he inherited from his

         11  father, and he is an old smoker, you know, and

         12  you're saying that he cannot go and smoke his own

         13  cigar in the place that he inherited from his

         14  father. His couple of bartenders I think, well, most

         15  of them I think smoke, but the ones that don't don't

         16  care. They like hanging out around the people. I

         17  mean, smokers apparently are awfully attracted to

         18  hang around too, but most fundamentally it's this

         19  issue of what in the world does private property

         20  mean, and write to the association, what do those

         21  things mean?

         22                 Now, distinction in economics is

         23  things like parks, things like beaches, the

         24  roadways, those are common. In many ways it would be

         25  much more in line with the founding documents and so
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          2  forth and the constitution. Because this really is a

          3  constitutional issue, and I really think that if you

          4  pass this you better be ready to take it to the

          5  Supreme Court, because I'm pretty certain you will

          6  get forces from the other side that will be willing

          7  to go and push this.

          8                 But this is the issue. In many ways

          9  rationally it would make more sense for you to

         10  outlaw smoking on the street because that's the

         11  common, that's where people do run into other people

         12  that don't have a choice to smoke.

         13                 I wouldn't put it past you to go and

         14  try to do that in the future, the next step, but you

         15  know you're making an awful lot of people, a very,

         16  very large number of people more angry, feel like

         17  second class citizens, more than they do already,

         18  and this issue that anyone has a choice whether or

         19  not to go in, if they're so attracted to come into

         20  bars that have smokers, hey, they make their choice,

         21  but now you want to squeeze every smoker out of

         22  existence. It's what's caused me to come into this

         23  building after living here 18 years.

         24                 MR. SLATTORY: Councilman, there are

         25  other ways of protecting employees. I don't think
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          2  the restaurant industry would have any resistance if

          3  you declared all dining rooms to be smoke-free, but

          4  keep the bars, the smokers, and not put out of your

          5  restaurant, or out of your place of business. That's

          6  money lost, it's guaranteed. It's a much bigger loss

          7  if you're not per se a restaurant and you're a

          8  tavern or a pub or a bar, nightclub, let them put

          9  the smoke-eating equipment in. This equipment could

         10  be leased and maintained. It's not -- it doesn't

         11  have to be a tremendous investment. It's ironic that

         12  we had a meeting about two, three years ago, a

         13  hearing in response to this smoke-free air act, and

         14  its effect.

         15                 One thing I pointed out was it

         16  created a new segment of our industry. It introduced

         17  the cigar bars. I said they exist on our business,

         18  and he said, well, could you prove that? The fact

         19  that they exist, they're getting their business from

         20  us. Before leaving their homes to go out and smoke

         21  in a cigar bar and eat dessert and drink cognac.

         22  They left our restaurants to do that.

         23                 But it's strange now, I have

         24  compassion for them, though they were our

         25  competitors, they're now brothers under the license,
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          2  and sisters. I don't want to see them forced out of

          3  business, but since you're giving them

          4  consideration, why don't you give consideration to

          5  everyone else that responded to the Smoke Free Air

          6  Act, built partitions around their bar, installed

          7  hundreds of thousands of air filtration system,

          8  every single licensee has spent anywhere from 10,000

          9  to 150, I heard staggering amounts, being added to

         10  new developments, new stores, 250,000 for the HVAC

         11  to respond to local law, special Smoke Free Air Act

         12  of '95. They've made that investment. But now you're

         13  saying forget about it. That's money you wasted. You

         14  responded to the law, but now we got a new law. The

         15  Smoke Free Air Act creating the cigar bar, they can

         16  stay, and they can keep selling that corporation

         17  under the corporate name, same owner.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm just shaking

         19  my head because you can't sell it now.

         20                 MR. SLATTORY: They can't sell? They

         21  don't sell the corporation, they sell stock.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It's not

         23  permissible under the law.

         24                 MR. SLATTORY: It's the same licensee,

         25  different independent -- I don't want to suggest
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          2  that, but it's surely the way it reads.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It's actually not

          4  permissible. I'm happy to have the staff at any

          5  point take you through that just so you know, but

          6  that's not permissible. People may agree or disagree

          7  with that, but the fact of the bill is that's not

          8  permissible.

          9                 MR. SLATTORY: Well, let's have some

         10  compassion for the people that spend millions.

         11                 MR. ARMSTRONG: Can I respond to --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I just want

         13  to go back to that question. Some years ago we found

         14  that the cleaners that had tenants above them, we

         15  found out that the cleaners there, carcinogens that

         16  were emitting from the cleaners and the people who

         17  lived above them, they were being affected. And, so,

         18  we created a law to deal with that.

         19                 Are you saying basically that we

         20  should not have created that law, that we should

         21  have asked the people above them to move and just

         22  tell the folks that there's a risk, and if you want

         23  you can take that apartment or not? Are you saying

         24  that?

         25                 MR. HELFER: Can I respond, please?
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          2  Thank you.

          3                 I am in favor of environmental

          4  controls, such as for asbestos, oil soaked beaches

          5  and diesel.

          6                 I have about 20 years in the

          7  restaurant business, although I'm not working full

          8  time in that business now. Unlike those

          9  contaminants, there are many people, employees,

         10  patrons and owners, who go to particular bars

         11  because they allow smoking.

         12                 I don't know of anyone who goes to a

         13  beach because it's soaked in oil. We are talking

         14  about two different matters, and I agree with you,

         15  Counselor, an environmental contaminant such as

         16  asbestos should be dealt with. But no one goes

         17  through a bar to get asbestos. Many employees, bar

         18  owners and patrons go to bars particularly because

         19  they allow smoking.

         20                 I definitely want non-smokers to have

         21  accommodations, but I also want those persons on my

         22  side to have accommodations too, and that is why

         23  when I go around New York, I find many, many venues

         24  for non-smokers, as it should be, but I think there

         25  also should be some accommodations for the thousands
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          2  of your fellow citizens who do like tobacco.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. KELLY: Councilman Stewart, the

          5  people that live above the dry cleaners, they don't

          6  have a choice in whether or not, you know, to be

          7  affected by that, but the smokers and the workers,

          8  they do have the choice whether or not to expose

          9  themselves to it. And, no, I would not in any way,

         10  shape or form suggest someone would have to relocate

         11  their residence based on what business was below

         12  that. You may want to look into something like that

         13  before renting something, a preexisting situation

         14  like that? No, I wouldn't do that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes, but the

         16  workers, you're saying the workers don't have a

         17  choice, they have to move. That's what you just

         18  said. Isn't it the same thing?

         19                 MR. KELLY: I'm saying that they have

         20  the choice of whether or not they want to go and

         21  work in my establishment.

         22                 Where you choose to work and your

         23  residence are two very, very separate things. And I

         24  would hope you, as a Councilman, could actually

         25  differentiate that, but perhaps maybe not.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Why is it

          3  different? Because if there is a problem there,

          4  you're living above that cleaners, you have a choice

          5  whether to live there or not. The worker retained in

          6  the establishment has a choice whether to work there

          7  or not; isn't that what you said?

          8                 MR. KELLY: No, because that cleaner

          9  is directly hurting you by what he's doing. I'm not

         10  directly hurting them by allowing smoking in my

         11  place.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: You are

         13  affecting them because they're being exposed to that

         14  secondhand smoke. That's what he's talking about.

         15                 MR. ARMSTRONG: They choose it, sir.

         16  Only if they choose it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sir, the one

         18  witness is answering the question. I'm sorry.

         19                 MR. KELLY: Honestly, we can go back

         20  and forth like this for probably about ten hours, so

         21  I'm going to be the smarter person here and say

         22  obviously you don't get it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Or perhaps

         24  actually the better thing to say was you both will

         25  have to agree to disagree.
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          2                 Council Member Sears.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you,

          4  Madam Chair.

          5                 We've been here a long time today,

          6  all of us, and this, to me this is a very sensitive

          7  and delicate issue, and I can understand actually

          8  both sides of this. But in all the sense of the

          9  arguments today, I don't think that we should lose

         10  sight of a very major, major issue, as difficult as

         11  it is, that government has a responsibility for the

         12  public health, and each year why the National

         13  Institute of Health and why the overwhelming

         14  research continues as it does is because every day

         15  more and more unfolds for health indices, the cause

         16  and effect of so many things that we could talk

         17  about.

         18                 We have children inoculated when they

         19  go to school. If they don't get inoculated, they

         20  don't enter the classroom. There are parents that

         21  don't like inoculations and they actually do home

         22  school, so they have their choices.

         23                 In the work environment, as it has

         24  come about over the years, 40 years ago when my

         25  mother smoked, there was no evidence of what it was
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          2  doing, none whatsoever. She smoked, she exposed

          3  everybody to secondhand smoke, and nobody thought

          4  anything about it. We cannot deny what the studies

          5  have unfolded and the passion for those who like to

          6  smoke, you know we all like to have our own things

          7  in what we like to do, I understand that. The harder

          8  issue, the most difficult thing is understanding

          9  those issues, and at the same time having to make

         10  decisions at what basically is the right thing to

         11  do.

         12                 I agree with Councilman Stewart, I've

         13  heard and I've sat at all the hearings on this bill

         14  and I have heard about people having the choice to

         15  work where they do. I think I have to be very

         16  careful about how I phrase this because there are

         17  people that have, that choose to work where they do,

         18  and have said and testified in some of the other

         19  hearings, that they really were not trained to do

         20  other things and didn't have the resources to go

         21  into some very specific training.

         22                 I don't think that people who have

         23  those limitations or the resources to pursue should

         24  be looked at in a punitive way because they are in

         25  positions of work that other people are not. I'm not
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          2  so certain they have a choice.

          3                 I also am seeing that I believe in

          4  government, as all information unfolds, as painful

          5  as it is, must make some hard decisions. And that

          6  doesn't mean that those decisions are right for

          7  everybody at that same time, but ultimately the

          8  decisions become right for everybody at some given

          9  time, and I can tell you as a health care

         10  administrator, and one who has run hospitals, I can

         11  tell you that what comes into hospitals from smoke

         12  has increased enormously.

         13                 Why Ontario, I just came back from

         14  there after a conference for five days, is

         15  smoke-free, it is a wonderful city, it has no

         16  problem with tourism and the economy is not in

         17  jeopardy. When Parliament opened there were two

         18  issues, mainly two issues from the Prime Minister.

         19  One was the future of health care in Canada and the

         20  second one was an ethics program for its government,

         21  which was interesting, the two things coinciding

         22  like that.

         23                 So, I'm not lecturing, but I really

         24  feel that government has hard decisions and they

         25  have to do them, and maybe this isn't right for
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          2  those who do like to smoke, and I'm not judging

          3  that, we all have our habits, but I do think that

          4  government, in turning its cheek, you wouldn't want

          5  a government like that, you really wouldn't. You

          6  want a government that can make some hard decisions,

          7  at the same time is being very sensitive to the

          8  issues that you talked about as a libertarian, and I

          9  think that this panel and this Council, every day

         10  that we meet and every day that we are in a

         11  committee hearing, we are faced with that very

         12  sensitive issue, how far do you go before you

         13  trespass on those individual rights, and that is the

         14  challenge. And we have to meet that challenge in

         15  everything that we do.

         16                 I just really wanted to make that

         17  comment because you may not agree with what I'm

         18  saying, but I did feel that I had to say that.

         19                 You have given some very, very

         20  credible arguments, and I don't deny that.

         21                 MR. ARMSTRONG: May I ask really where

         22  the notion--

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can I just say, as

         24  I said earlier, we actually don't take questions

         25  from the panel to the Council members.
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          2                 MR. KELLY: I don't have a question,

          3  but I would like to state that I think government

          4  obviously does need to get involved with things, and

          5  they are concerned in regards to the effects of

          6  smoking and secondhand smoke, make smoking illegal.

          7  You make it illegal and it's a level playing field

          8  for all of us. And you know what? I feel bad for the

          9  smokers, but at least now we're on a level playing

         10  field and it's good for everybody. Yes, everyone

         11  will be a lot healthier, hopefully everybody will

         12  live an extra five, ten years longer, but the thing

         13  is that we do need the government to create a level

         14  playing field and what this has done here has

         15  created an extremely unlevel playing field and has

         16  given some people an extreme opportunity while

         17  taking away from others, and that is not a fair

         18  government.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         20                 Next we're going to hear from Heidi

         21  Silverstone, Russell Sciandra. Is Russell still

         22  here? Okay. Peter Leahey? Seymour Grayson. Is

         23  Seymour here? Is Mollie Maxwell still here?

         24                 MS. MAXWELL: Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, Mollie, if

                                                            225

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  you could come down, please.

          3                 They'll be followed by Brett Goldman.

          4  Is Mr. Goldman still here? I think it's Goldman, of

          5  46 Grand Street. Jay Craig. Okay. Eugene McKenna,

          6  from the Bronx. You're the next panel, I just wanted

          7  to see if folks were here. Virginia Cummings. Okay.

          8  Is Michael Glynn still here? No, okay. Is J.

          9  Carnwine still here?

         10                 MR. CARWINE: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, so you would

         12  be on the following panel. Thank you.

         13                 I'll have staff come over and speak

         14  with you, sir.

         15                 Whoever would like to begin, go right

         16  ahead.

         17                 MS. SILVERSTONE: Good afternoon,

         18  Chairperson Quinn, remaining member of the Council

         19  and remaining fellow citizens.

         20                 My name is Heidi Silverstone, I'm

         21  here representing my husband, my two small children

         22  and myself. Thanks to the tough anti-smoking laws in

         23  place now people can take their children to City

         24  playgrounds, as well as Yankee and Shea Stadiums and

         25  not have to worry about the hazards of secondhand
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          2  smoke. If the City Council felt that these outdoor

          3  areas were important enough to ban smoking, why stop

          4  there and not include a ban on outdoor seating areas

          5  of restaurants all together, not only 75 percent?

          6                 The intent of the new anti-smoking

          7  bill, especially its intent to protect restaurant

          8  employees, must require that smoking also be banned

          9  in 100 percent of outdoor seating areas.

         10                 Otherwise restaurant staff will still

         11  be exposed to secondhand smoke.

         12                 One cannot argue that these workers

         13  agree to be exposed to secondhand smoke as part of

         14  their job, even at a place where they can make a

         15  great deal of money. Workers shouldn't be forced to

         16  choose higher salary prospects to the detriment of

         17  their health. Jobs are difficult to find in these

         18  trying times and workers may be forced to reduce

         19  their own job prospects by avoiding restaurants with

         20  outdoor seating.

         21                 If the language of the proposed new

         22  law is accepted and smoking will be permitted in 25

         23  percent of outdoor seating areas of restaurants, a

         24  concentrated area of smoke will be created in those

         25  areas.
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          2                 This fact, in turn, will expose

          3  apartment dwellers above and adjacent to those areas

          4  to the drifting secondhand smoke.

          5                 I personally moved out of an

          6  apartment because of drifting secondhand smoke from

          7  an adjacent apartment.

          8                 Also, given the geography of the

          9  City, many outdoor seating areas are set at the

         10  entrances of restaurants. That means that all people

         11  who wish to dine at such restaurants will have to

         12  walk through those smoking areas.

         13                 There probably isn't anyone in this

         14  room who hasn't seen workers huddled in any weather

         15  outside of an office building where smoking is

         16  banned inside and then that person has to navigate

         17  through a thick cloud of smoke just to enter the

         18  lobby. The same scenario would occur at restaurants

         19  with outdoor seating which is in front, unless the

         20  smoking ban is extended to 100 percent of the

         21  outdoor areas.

         22                 I am sure that there are some in this

         23  room who are skeptical about the credibility of the

         24  studies done about the dangers of secondhand smoke.

         25  The danger of secondhand smoke is not the only thing
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          2  that people have issue with. The pure smell of smoke

          3  is offensive to many. When people are exposed to

          4  secondhand smoke, they bring the odor back to their

          5  homes through their clothes and their hair. Why

          6  should they be subject to someone else's habit?

          7                 This is a very passionate topic and

          8  if I had my way I would ban smoking everywhere under

          9  all circumstances. I understand that at this time it

         10  is not possible.

         11                 So, I'd like this new, tougher

         12  anti-smoking law to protect as many people as

         13  possible, which means banning smoking in outdoor

         14  seating areas of restaurants 100 percent of the

         15  time.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Go ahead, please.

         18                 MR. SCIANDRA: Madam Chair and members

         19  of the Committee, thank you for the opportunity to

         20  appear before you and put our views on the record on

         21  this vitally important health issue.

         22                 My name is Russell Sciandra. I'm

         23  Director of the Center for a Tobacco Free New York,

         24  a statewide advocacy program. I speak today also on

         25  behalf of the New York Public Interest Research
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          2  Group and the Legal Women Voters of New York.

          3                 We want to congratulate all involved

          4  in bringing this bill to the brink of enactment, all

          5  the principals in this process make public health

          6  their first priority, and New Yorkers can be proud

          7  of their elected leaders, and proud that another

          8  milestone has been added to New York's history of

          9  leadership and consumer and health protection.

         10                 Legislation is seldom perfect and

         11  it's not my intention to decry the minor compromises

         12  and accommodations necessary to gain broad support

         13  for this important life-saving legislation.

         14                 But there is one flaw in Intro. 256-A

         15  that should be corrected at the earliest

         16  opportunity. Section 10 of this bill amends Section

         17  17-505 subdivision H of the existing chapter, the

         18  1995 law. This section was originally intended to

         19  allow smoking at private functions, which is wedding

         20  receptions or corporate meetings held in enclosed

         21  rooms, which are defined in the 1995 law as a room

         22  completely enclosed on all sides by solid floor to

         23  ceiling walls.

         24                 The amendment transforms this

         25  exemption into something all together different.
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          2  Bars are added to the list of facilities eligible

          3  for exemption, and rather than happy events like

          4  weddings or bar mitzvahs, the occasion for such

          5  exemption is now an event promoting tobacco

          6  products.

          7                 These promotions are to take place in

          8  an enclosed room, but unfortunately the definition

          9  of enclosed room is actually repealed in 256-A, and

         10  no new definition is provided.

         11                 We're afraid that the effect of this

         12  amendment will be to allow the tobacco industry to

         13  continue its aggressive promotional activities in

         14  bars.

         15                 New York City bars currently provide

         16  a friendly environment in which tobacco companies

         17  can market their products to their key target group,

         18  young adults between 20 and 30. Tobacco companies

         19  spend hundreds of millions of dollars every year

         20  promoting cigarette brands in thousands of bars and

         21  clubs across the country.

         22                 Examination of internal industry

         23  documents reveals how important this tactic is. A

         24  1998 competitor assessment by Philip Morris

         25  estimates that RJR alone spent $80 million a year
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          2  nationwide promoting Camels and Winstons.

          3                 A 1997 internal industry document

          4  includes a partial list of 69 bars in the City of

          5  New York participating in programs with one or

          6  another brand. The number today is probably higher.

          7                 Typically for these promotions,

          8  cigarette makers underwrite entertainment,

          9  distribute free samples to patrons and provide to

         10  the proprietor branded back bar material such as

         11  napkins and glasses.

         12                 Just another half a minute.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         14                 MR. SCIANDRA: The main purpose of

         15  these events is to distribute product samples to

         16  potential new customers and collect names.

         17                 This amendment will allow these

         18  practices to continue, they will continue, though,

         19  at a cost. Every time a tobacco company underwrites

         20  one of these events, this great law will essentially

         21  be repealed in that facility. Patrons and workers,

         22  regardless of their smoking status or their personal

         23  preference will be exposed to deadly secondhand

         24  tobacco smoke. And I think we can guess the tobacco

         25  companies will sponsor hundreds, if not thousands of
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          2  these events every year.

          3                 We believe this is too high a cost to

          4  pay to allow the tobacco companies one more way to

          5  promote their deadly product.

          6                 Our organizations urge the Council to

          7  enact Intro. 256-A at its meeting next week and to

          8  repeal or correct Section 10 as soon thereafter as

          9  possible.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'll just say on

         12  that point I might have the staff follow up with

         13  you, because I think there are some drafting errors

         14  there that we could explain that address some of

         15  your concerns.

         16                 MR. SCIANDRA: That would be

         17  wonderful.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The staff will get

         19  your card and probably follow up with you

         20  afterwards. I can understand why you thought that,

         21  I'm not going to go through all the details, it's

         22  not exactly that, but they'll follow up with you.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 MS. MAXWELL: Thank you for the

         25  opportunity to testify with you today.
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          2                 My name is Mollie Maxwell, and I

          3  financed my education through jobs at six

          4  restaurants and bars, and know from firsthand

          5  experience that this is a health issue.

          6                 I have never been a smoker, and I

          7  have nothing against smokers; however, I do not feel

          8  that I should be forced to breath secondhand smoke

          9  as a requirement of my job and to the detriment of

         10  my health.

         11                 Restaurants are the only jobs that

         12  allowed me the flexibility to maintain my academic

         13  schedule, and since the age of 16 I have worked as a

         14  hostess, a waitress and bar tender for six

         15  establishments.

         16                 Four of the establishments offered a

         17  smoking section. I chose to work in two smoke-free

         18  establishments after that. There is no comparison.

         19                 After an eight-hour shift at a bar

         20  with a smoking section, I would routine suffer sinus

         21  and upper respiratory problems. Not being a smoker

         22  I'd wheeze and not know why. During exercise I would

         23  have difficulty breathing. My throat would often be

         24  sore.

         25                 After switching to a non-smoking
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          2  restaurant, I noticed an immediate difference in my

          3  health, and in the health of the other employees in

          4  morale.

          5                 Patrons, as well, were much happier

          6  in the non-smoking restaurants, especially families,

          7  the elderly and expectant mothers.

          8                 Just because I choose to work my way

          9  through school at restaurants should not mean that I

         10  have twice the risk for acquiring cancer, heart and

         11  lung disease later in my life.

         12                 I realized how lucky I was to quit my

         13  job in the smoking restaurant and wait for a couple

         14  of months until I could find a job in a non-smoking

         15  restaurant. Not everyone has those resources.

         16                 I support a smoke-free workplace

         17  because everybody has the right to a healthy working

         18  environment.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         21                 Sorry, go ahead.

         22                 MR. LEAHEY: Thank you. Excuse me. My

         23  name is Peter Leahey, and I just want to express my

         24  appreciation to Speaker Miller for -- I'm in his

         25  district -- keeping me informed of the hearings,
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          2  sending me letters, and, of course, the Council, to

          3  allow us to speak here.

          4                 The other day I was reading the New

          5  York Times about Governor Pataki's idea of taking

          6  the money they were getting from a settlement from

          7  the tobacco companies and using it to create bonds

          8  to pay for the deficit that's running in our

          9  government. And I was thinking, wow, that's an

         10  admission that there is a serious problem with

         11  tobacco in society. And I'm happy, finally, in my

         12  lifetime, that the City Council is actually taking

         13  some steps to bring about the end of smoking in

         14  bars.

         15                 Now, I'm an asthmatic, I also have a

         16  heart disease. I used to bartend in graduate school

         17  and in college before, you know, I came down with

         18  these lung things, which are not to me tobacco

         19  related. But I used to break out in rashes from the

         20  cigarette smoke.

         21                 Now when I go into a bar or a

         22  restaurant and there's nobody smoking I'm very

         23  thankful. Somebody lights up a cigarette, I'm not

         24  thankful at all. Sometimes so many people are

         25  smoking I have to actually leave. My eyes start
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          2  watering, I start coughing. The next morning I get

          3  up. Sometimes I have difficulty breathing, if I've

          4  been out all weekend, going around to clubs and bars

          5  for my friends, because the tobacco smoke is the

          6  same thing as coming out of a car exhaust. It's

          7  carbon monoxide. It's toxic. It's killing. I don't

          8  want to die from being a social butterfly. I want to

          9  live a long life and this bill, if it is enacted,

         10  would allow me to look forward to enjoying my social

         11  life, going out with my friends, going to bars,

         12  going to clubs, going to restaurants and not be

         13  intimidated physically, mentally, psychologically by

         14  other people smoking because of the negative affect

         15  it has on my ability to breathe.

         16                 So, I would just feel that the

         17  oppression that has been a part of my life from

         18  cigarette smokers would no longer exist, and it may

         19  sound corny, but as Martin Luther King said, I'm

         20  free at least. Thank God I'm free at last.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 Jay Craig, Eugene McKenna, Virginia

         24  Cummings and J Carnwine (sic).

         25                 MR. ARNWINE: JC.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: JC, I'm sorry.

          3                 I just want to say these four are the

          4  last four slips we have from people opposing the

          5  measure. So, if there are opposers in the audience

          6  who signed a slip and haven't been called or haven't

          7  and want to testify, please see the Sergeants.

          8                 And as you guys get your seats, I

          9  just want to see who of the other slips are here.

         10  Let me just take a second to do that.

         11                 Is Phil Konigsberg still here?

         12                 MR. KONIGSBERG: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, you'll be on

         14  the panel following this. Richard Tamayo?

         15                 MR. TAMAYO: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, you'll be on

         17  the next panel.

         18                 Dylan Dorreen Clay.

         19                 MS. CLAY: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, you'll be on

         21  the next panel.

         22                 Frank Cuervo. Okay.

         23                 Let me just see, following that,

         24  which is following this group, Suzanne Duracher. Is

         25  Suzanne still here? Okay. Reverend Dr. Charles
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          2  Norris? He's here, I think he just stepped out.

          3                 Josh Cohen. Alex Strauss (sic)?

          4                 MR. STAVIS: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You will be the,

          6  not the panel following this, the one after that.

          7                 Who would ever like to go first, feel

          8  free.

          9                 MR. CRAIG: I guess it's on. First,

         10  I'd like to say I really appreciate the difficulty

         11  of your job, after having sat here all afternoon.

         12  And I thank you for the opportunity to speak.

         13                 I'd also like to say that I really

         14  believe that saving 1,000 lives a year is a very

         15  important -- and you cannot underestimate the

         16  importance of this cause, and I praise and

         17  congratulate you for that.

         18                 I also believe that a total

         19  prohibition on smoking is no longer necessary to

         20  achieve this goal. The reason I say that is because

         21  of new developments in the technology of air

         22  filtration.

         23                 Up until recently, the problem with

         24  air filtration has been the inability of its -- to

         25  capture the vapor components of environmental
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          2  tobacco smoke. That's no longer true.

          3                 A carbon-based gas phase filter has

          4  changed that, and it's been tested at one of the

          5  leading indoor air quality facilities in the

          6  country.

          7                 The University of Tulsa tobacco smoke

          8  test results show that this new high efficiency gas

          9  absorption media filter is highly effective in the

         10  capture of these chemicals. The study was conducted

         11  by a Dr. Richard Seanasy, Ph.D, who is considered

         12  nationally to be the leading expert in the longevity

         13  of ETS.

         14                 Now, when you combine this gas phase

         15  filtration with high-efficiency particle filtration,

         16  you not only dramatically reduce hazardous chemicals

         17  of environmental tobacco smoke, but also create some

         18  of the cleaner indoor air spaces in the City of New

         19  York.

         20                 Another problem with air filtration

         21  in regards to secondhand smoke in bars is inadequate

         22  amount of air cleaners used. Indoor air spaces are

         23  three dimensional and square footage is not enough

         24  to determine air cleaning requirements.

         25                 The effectiveness of this air
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          2  filtration system depends on the rate of filtration

          3  or how often all the air in this space is passed

          4  through these filters.

          5                 This depends on the size of the

          6  space, including the height of the ceiling. We would

          7  recommend at least 12 air changes an hour, which

          8  would filter all of the air in a continuous cycle of

          9  at least five minutes.

         10                 I would also like to make a

         11  distinction between filtration and ventilation.

         12  Ventilation assumes that the air replacing the

         13  contaminated air is clean. In a separate smoking

         14  room situation filtration can prevent smoke from

         15  being recycled through the heating and ventilation

         16  system, in a non-smoking area.

         17                 Ventilations main accomplishment is

         18  often to drive up the utility cost. Filter

         19  replacement would be effective and less expensive in

         20  the additional heating and air conditioning needed.

         21                 Air filtration is continuously being

         22  developed to eliminate very dangerous particles and

         23  gases from the air. Some of this technology was

         24  developed by the scientists working on the Manhattan

         25  project to protect themselves from airborne
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          2  radioactive particles. This technology is used in

          3  clean rooms, hospitals, various industrial settings.

          4  It can absolutely be applied to secondhand smoke.

          5                 So, I submit that the City of New

          6  York has an opportunity to be proactive as opposed

          7  to reactive on this very important issue.

          8                 We can ensure a safe working

          9  environment to protect the health of everyone, while

         10  at the same time protect the interest of everyone

         11  involved.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Go ahead, you can

         14  start. You just push the button.

         15                 MS. CUMMINGS: Okay. Madam

         16  Chairperson, present members of the Council, thank

         17  you for giving me the opportunity to speak.

         18                 I am a smoker. I've been a smoker for

         19  over 35 years, but it's not as a smoker that I am

         20  seriously concerned about this ban, it's as an

         21  American.

         22                 When I went to school, I was taught

         23  that this country was built on freedoms. I have even

         24  been told that it is these specific individual

         25  freedoms that drive those who want to take up arms
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          2  and fight to defend them. So, how does this work? We

          3  don't want foreign powers to take away our freedoms,

          4  but we're going to allow our own politicians to take

          5  them.

          6                 If this law goes into effect, be

          7  prepared to begin giving up the tenets of free

          8  enterprize.

          9                 If someone is willing to risk the

         10  loss of customers by putting a sign in the window,

         11  smoking allowed here, what right has the government

         12  to say he or she can't do this?

         13                 I'm truly sorry that there are

         14  people, waiters an waitresses, who because of an

         15  allergy or an aversion to smoke feel they lose the

         16  right to work where they choose. However, someone

         17  who gets seasick shouldn't apply for a job on a

         18  cruiseline. Or is that next? Do we drydock all the

         19  ships so that those who get seasick have the option

         20  to work onboard?

         21                 I'm seriously allergic to many

         22  perfumes, and have spent entire days at work ill,

         23  because of someone on a subway or a bus who is

         24  wearing one of these perfumes. Should the mass

         25  transit systems in this country ban all sense to
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          2  accommodate those of us with allergies? I have the

          3  right to get off the train and get on the next one.

          4                 You want to make the air cleaner for

          5  people? That's a marvelous thing. Educate them to

          6  not smoke. Use some of the time and energy that went

          7  into the working of this bill. If enough of us, the

          8  smokers, give up smoking through the education, we

          9  will not frequent places that are uncomfortable for

         10  us. If business owners begin to lose money, he or

         11  she will change the laws of their business

         12  themselves. My belief, though, is that if this ban

         13  goes against everything America is supposed to stand

         14  for, it is taking away from the people a right to

         15  run their business without government interference.

         16                 Weren't you all taught that was the

         17  reason people ran to the shores of this new world,

         18  to live without unnecessary government intrusion?

         19  Please, please, think of this ban not as a smoking

         20  thing, but as an infringement on our personal

         21  liberties, because that indeed is what it is.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 MR. ARNWINE: My name is JC Arnwine,

         24  I'm a Director for New York City Bowling

         25  Association. I would personally like to thank
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          2  Chairwoman Quinn and her staff for being so gracious

          3  and to inform me of when this meeting was going to

          4  take place.

          5                 My problem is that I am a non-smoker,

          6  so I really do not care what taxes you charge

          7  smokers. The problem isn't in bowlers. Some of my

          8  friends do smoke. If this bill goes through, bowling

          9  meets are going to have to make a decision in March

         10  of telling their friends you cannot smoke here. The

         11  results will be a disaster. In Staten Island, which

         12  I cover mostly, Bowling On The Green will lose 50

         13  percent of its members, Country Lanes will lose 20

         14  percent, and Victory will lose 20 percent.

         15                 The notion that we seem to be

         16  concerned so much about health care I find at best

         17  laudable, because it is also a fact that this City

         18  wanted to close, the Mayor's proposal was to close

         19  hospitals for children and it was also at a meeting

         20  that Councilwoman Quinn held, that the Health

         21  Commissioner wanted to take notices out of schools.

         22  So I don't see the logic.

         23                 Now, as far as if you really wanted

         24  to be healthy, you could force cars that come into

         25  the City with more than one person and they must
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          2  have two people all the time. The reality is for

          3  bowlers is that if there are no bowling centers, we

          4  do not exist. It's as simple as that.

          5                 If bowling centers close, I will bowl

          6  no matter where it is. To me it does not matter. But

          7  the reality is that when centers close, bowlers do

          8  not bowl, we lose 50 percent of them, they are not

          9  migratory creatures.

         10                 I would hope that you do not pass

         11  this bill. If the bill is passed, the reality is

         12  that I will bowl no matter where it is, but there

         13  are a lot of bowlers who are going to be affected.

         14  It will be very hard for me to tell a friend of mine

         15  for 25 years that you can't smoke here no more. Now,

         16  I don't smoke, so it doesn't apply to me, this bill,

         17  but it will apply to those other bowlers.

         18                 And as far as going outside to smoke,

         19  you have your bowling equipment and your shoes on

         20  and it's 15 degrees and it's snowing, I don't think

         21  so. As far as people to smoke outside. Smokers are

         22  about as popular as Osama bin Laden is, so that's

         23  not really an issue here. The issue is if we're

         24  talking about health, then there should never be

         25  shortages of nurses and doctors and hospitals. This
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          2  is an issue that the Mayor decided that he wants.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sorry. Thank you.

          5                 Go ahead, sir.

          6                 MR.: Well, it appears that I'm going

          7  to have to sum up for our side, and I don't --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: No, another person

          9  has --

         10                 MR. McKENNA: Okay, good. But where

         11  have we come in these three hearings, and all the

         12  other hearings that came on before that, before this

         13  Council was seated?

         14                 The other side continues to come to

         15  us presenting no new evidence, no new urgency, no

         16  compelling need to change the law as it is. That

         17  case has not been made.

         18                 In the presentation made by the

         19  Deputy Mayor and the Health Commissioner, we learned

         20  that they were ready to draw an exemption for

         21  tobacco bars. So, what's the lesson? Listen to what

         22  is being said. If you sell liquor, or you sell food

         23  and someone smokes on your premises you're in

         24  violation and you're a health hazard. If you sold

         25  tobacco, well, gee, we don't want to put you out of
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          2  business. How does that -- where is the sense of

          3  that? The exemption puts the lie to the hearings.

          4  This is not about health. This is about something

          5  that's punitive and that will be revenue-producing.

          6                 The Mayor continually says let's not

          7  put the burden of the $6 million tax imbalance on

          8  the backs of the rich, but he continues to impose

          9  one burden or another on the poor.

         10                 He tells unions they're not entitled

         11  to any kind of an increment, at the same time he's

         12  raising their property taxes 18 and a half percent.

         13  Where are we going with this?

         14                 Our side has tried to present a

         15  logical end result of what you guys are about to do.

         16  We trust the City Council as representatives of the

         17  lowest form of City government. You're our community

         18  representatives. You don't represent Bloomberg, Inc.

         19  Bloomberg is used to people obeying his commands and

         20  getting his way. It is not fitting for the City

         21  Council to bend over backwards to accommodate that.

         22                 The exemption for the tobacco bars is

         23  very suspicious, and it will generate an incredible

         24  amount of inquiry.

         25                 The exemption for the American Legion
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          2  posts is equally suspicious, and the private clubs,

          3  because this also would probably by extension go to

          4  the clubs that the Mayor frequents. No, the

          5  Princeton Club will not be included?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Only places that

          7  have no employees where all of the work is done by

          8  members and the members can get no financial or

          9  other compensation.

         10                 MR. McKENNA: Do you believe that any

         11  of those bars run in American Legion posts are not

         12  paying their people.

         13                 I live on City Island, we have --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sir, we did

         15  actually an extensive research and we can give you a

         16  list of the American Legions, VFWs and Knights of

         17  Columbus that don't have staff. It's not all but it

         18  has some, but actually I only stop you on this point

         19  because we actually did a ton of research on this,

         20  so there are some and we'd be happy to provide you

         21  with that data.

         22                 MR. McKENNA: Well, on City Island,

         23  where I live, we have 26 licensed premises. The

         24  largest revenue producing premise, in terms of sale

         25  of alcohol and beer, is the American Legion, even
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          2  though we have some very prominent restaurants.

          3                 There is no way that you could

          4  convince me that those people who are working there

          5  are doing it out of the kindness and generosity of

          6  their community spirit.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Some do have staff

          8  and some don't. It's different at every, it's not

          9  the same at every legion hall. So the one on City

         10  Island absolutely might.

         11                 MR. McKENNA: What we're trying to

         12  say, Chairman Quinn, is that inadvertently you are

         13  creating an atmosphere where the people who have for

         14  very long time paid no attention to a lot of

         15  regulations are going to be rewarded. Illegal social

         16  clubs, fraternal organization clubs, clubs that have

         17  never paid attention to the drinking age or to a lot

         18  of other rules that most bars are scrupulous and

         19  conscientious on, what we're trying, the case we're

         20  trying to make is that there are repercussions to

         21  everything this Council does. If you simply rubber

         22  stamp what the Mayor puts before you, you're

         23  following his agenda, and his agenda is frightfully,

         24  frighteningly wrong.

         25                 Taxes were raised on the sale of
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          2  tobacco, or tobacco products in the City of New

          3  York, and there is no one in bodegas selling tobacco

          4  anymore, they're being sold on the street. We have

          5  Internet sales and illegal sales from Indian

          6  reservations and from every part of the country

          7  coming into the City of New York, but the tax

          8  revenue has been totally lost. Now you're being

          9  asked to penalize another industry, a very vital

         10  industry, to the commerce of this City and I haven't

         11  heard anyone in the Health Committee ask the right

         12  questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you sum up?

         14                 MR. McKENNA: Yes. Summation, I'm

         15  saying that this is -- the issue that this is a

         16  health issue is questionable and perhaps even bogus.

         17  This is a revenue-producing thing, it's going to

         18  penalize licensees, it's going to hit us with heavy

         19  fines, and it ultimately is going to put people out

         20  of business. It's going to become a police problem,

         21  it's going to become a community problem, a

         22  community board problem. You've heard the

         23  opposition.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Can you sum up,

         25  sir?
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          2                 MR. McKENNA: I am summing up. All of

          3  the testimony that I've heard today is coming --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You don't need to

          5  sum it all up, just yours.

          6                 MR. McKENNA: I apologize. But, you

          7  know, on the other side, we had one lobbyist after

          8  another. One institutional group, whether it was the

          9  cancer or the health people or the heart people,

         10  they're all paid political hacks. They're all paid

         11  spokesmen for their causes.

         12                 On this side you heard legitimate

         13  community people, legitimate business people,

         14  pleaing with you to take a look at what you're about

         15  to do. The newspapers are all telling us this is a

         16  done deal.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sir, you had way

         18  more, and --

         19                 MR. McKENNA: I understand.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: From the time I

         21  interrupted I put another minute on the clock for

         22  you, so you really need to --

         23                 MR. McKENNA: I will take the advice

         24  that the TWU gave to the Mayor.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, I'm not
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          2  saying that.

          3                 MR. McKENNA: I'll shut up.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I was actually

          5  going to say if you could sum up. I absolutely did

          6  not say that and I wouldn't want even that to look

          7  like that. So, just in 20 seconds if you could sum

          8  up.

          9                 MR. McKENNA: Oh, I have no problem

         10  with what the TWU was saying to the Mayor. The Mayor

         11  would do well to sit back and listen.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just 20 seconds,

         13  go right ahead.

         14                 MR. McKENNA: I'm sorry that Giff

         15  Miller was not able to sit through this hearing. I'm

         16  sorry that the other 51 members of the Council, or

         17  the other 49 members of the Council are not present,

         18  not just because anything we're saying would be long

         19  remembered, but because there is an energy on our

         20  side that is singularly lacking on the other, and

         21  you are not catching it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         23                 Yes, Council Member Stewart.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Sir, you said

         25  quite a lot, but you also said that we in the
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          2  Council are not asking the right questions; could

          3  you give me at least three questions that you

          4  consider the right questions?

          5                 MR. McKENNA: Why not. As several

          6  speakers have suggested, make it optional for the

          7  customer to choose whether, and for the worker to

          8  choose whether they are going to a smoking or a

          9  non-smoking premise. Let the signs go up. Give them

         10  a fair option.

         11                 I wouldn't ask anyone to take -- I'm

         12  a diabetic, I wouldn't want to be involved in a job

         13  that required me to be around sweets or about things

         14  that would be harmful to me that way. I couldn't

         15  work in a bakery, I couldn't work in a

         16  confectionery. I know that.

         17                 If you're allergic to smoke, you

         18  shouldn't be working in a bar. But if the bar

         19  chooses to serve other customers who want to smoke,

         20  and who get their relaxation that way, then it

         21  should have the option to be able to do that. This

         22  is again, Councilman, this is not a health issue,

         23  and the Mayor's people put the lie to it by drawing

         24  the exemptions.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I'm trying to
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          2  get questions. What are your three questions? You

          3  said we are not asking the right questions, and I'm

          4  just --

          5                 MR. McKENNA: Unfortunately, the best

          6  questions should be asked. The first speaker on this

          7  panel, this particular panel, is an expert on air

          8  filtration, and there are other people who have

          9  presented themselves to this Council over the period

         10  of the inquiry. We have heard that we can purify the

         11  air in submarines, we can purify the air in

         12  operating rooms, in intensive care units, we can

         13  purify the air in the diamond center, which is

         14  pernicious, and people go to work in these

         15  environments every day, just as people who are

         16  tunnel workers do, and they put their lives on the

         17  line, understanding that they're in a dangerous

         18  environment. The technology that has been improved

         19  to the point now where all of these dangerous

         20  environments can be made clean.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Sir, last

         22  chance.

         23                 What are three questions that you

         24  feel I should have been asking to the other side?

         25                 MR. McKENNA: Well, you should have
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          2  spent a lot more time asking the people who were

          3  doing air filtration and asking them questions about

          4  how this could be done, and could it be done cheaply

          5  and could it be done in bars and restaurants?  Is it

          6  being done?

          7                 None of that seems to have gotten

          8  through that it is being done.

          9                 Secondly, the option, you know the

         10  business of labeling a place as smoking or a

         11  non-smoking premise.

         12                 And thirdly, I think you should be

         13  asking a heck of a lot more about the economic

         14  impact. This is a City in $6 billion in debt and if

         15  you penalize this industry, even ten percent, that's

         16  a loss of revenue that is, will not be made up in

         17  any other way. It's a loss of jobs that will not be

         18  made up in any other way. And you have a

         19  responsibility to the people who live in your

         20  community to answer (sic) the Mayor and to make the

         21  Mayor answer these questions. We haven't seen a

         22  panel of scientists or medical technicians or

         23  business people sit down to analyze this. You're

         24  being asked as Councilpeople, and without any more

         25  expertise than I have, you're being asked to digest
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          2  this and to spit out an answer and recommendation.

          3  At the moment we're talking to two Councilpeople and

          4  your recommendation is going to go to 51, and those

          5  51 are never going to read the proceedings that

          6  anyone has said in here. All they're going to know

          7  is what Bloomberg Bombass (phonetic).

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right.

          9  Thank you, sir. I think I'll have to ask you maybe

         10  some other time what the three questions are,

         11  because I couldn't get the answer.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Thank you all very much.

         16                 We're next going to hear from Phil

         17  Konigsberg, Richard Tamayo, Dylan Doreen Clay and

         18  frank Cuervo. Those four individuals will be

         19  followed by Reverend Dr. Charles Norris and Alex

         20  Strauss.

         21                 And those two, which will be after

         22  these four, will be followed by Fernando Calvo, who

         23  will be the final witness today.

         24                 Hang on one second, I'm just working

         25  on the clock. I seem to have messed it up.
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          2                 Okay, great, whoever would like to go

          3  first.

          4                 MS. CLAY: I'll go first.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

          6                 MS. CLAY: I just want to say that no

          7  one paid me to say any of this.

          8                 Okay. My name is Dylan Clay.  I'm a

          9  single parent, as well as sole provider for my

         10  disabled son Quincy. I am truly thankful to the

         11  Hyatt Corporation, the job not only provided a

         12  decent income, but much needed benefits for both of

         13  us. But were these benefits worth the health

         14  problems I am now experiencing?

         15                 All symptoms to the effects of

         16  secondhand smoke started slowly. I would come home

         17  coughing, feeling a bit of throat irritation,

         18  sneezing and thinking I must have suddenly developed

         19  allergies.

         20                 Sometime thereafter I kept coming

         21  down with bouts of bronchitis. The many evenings

         22  coming home from work and being saturated with the

         23  smell of smoke should have been an indicator. Even

         24  more apparent should have been the water that would

         25  run brown from my hair after showering before going
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          2  to bed. Certainly I was grossed out, but aside from

          3  the secondhand smoke causing a bad odor, I didn't

          4  put together that someone else's cigarette habit

          5  could be affecting my health.

          6                 Regardless, few years into the job I

          7  was happy to hear about the Clean Air Act, even

          8  though smoke was only believed to be an annoyance at

          9  the time, the hotel did provide one no smoking

         10  section. However, the air goes everywhere and it

         11  sure found me.

         12                 I have always been a non-smoker, but

         13  the clientele served at the Hyatt were smoking. As a

         14  result, I was sick so often that I could barely pay

         15  my bills. I practically could no longer breathe.

         16  Doctors came up with a diagnosis of severe

         17  bronchitis. I knew that I needed to leave my job,

         18  but being a single mother, didn't know what else to

         19  do. I have worked at the Hyatt for several months

         20  now -- I haven't worked at the Hyatt for several

         21  months now. I'm experience (sic) shortness of

         22  breath, wheezing, severe coughing, chest tightness

         23  and pain from exposure to secondhand smoke.

         24                 I have been diagnosed with the

         25  occupational asthma, acute bronchitis, COPD and
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          2  acute rhinitis.  Daily I must take inhalers,

          3  bronchiodilators, steroids and routinely

          4  antibiotics.

          5                 My child would like to know why one

          6  is given the right to smoke, even though it can hurt

          7  others' right to breathe. Me, too. This has been

          8  beneficial to him in one way though, at least he can

          9  see the ramifications and the habit of smoking and

         10  how it can effect others' health around him.

         11                 He has known me as a very healthy

         12  woman. I have always taken very good care of my

         13  body. My son suggested the similarities between the

         14  problem of those experienced in sweatshops years

         15  ago, where the government needed to change the laws

         16  to improve the working conditions. He wants to know

         17  if they can help people that get sick at work, like

         18  his mom, and maybe even help them get better.

         19                 So, I ask myself over and over again,

         20  did the benefits of this job outweigh the tragedies

         21  of all these health problems?

         22                 Perhaps my story will at least be

         23  able to help save the next person. Let's hope.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         25                 Go right ahead.
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          2                 MR. KONIGSBERG: Good afternoon. My

          3  name is Phil Konigsberg. I'm a member of Community

          4  Board 7 in Queens, President of the Bay Terrace

          5  Community Alliance, and I'm speaking and

          6  representing Smoke-free Educational Services.

          7                 At the October, November meetings I

          8  mentioned that I would try and get a resolution

          9  passed by Community Board 7 in Queens, supporting

         10  the Intro. 256, since a lot of testimony previously

         11  were by the New York Nightlife Association trying to

         12  pass opposing 256, and I'd like to just read into

         13  the record a letter from Eugene Kelty, Chairman of

         14  Community Board 7, regarding Smoke-Free Workplace

         15  Act of 2002.

         16                 "Dear Speaker Miller:

         17                 On Monday evening, December 9th,

         18  2002, by a vote of 24 to 12, Community Board 7

         19  passed the above captioned resolution endorsed by

         20  the American Cancer Society, American Heart

         21  Association, and the American Lung Association. It

         22  is our understanding that the Council will be

         23  holding a public hearing on this Act today. We would

         24  appreciate having our letter of support read into

         25  the record."
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          2                 And there's some local newspapers

          3  that wrote about the resolution being passed.

          4                 Although Intro. 256 is a very good

          5  measure to protect New Yorkers from the affects of

          6  secondhand smoke, I ask you to reconsider. Please

          7  remove the recent amendments to Intro. 256 and keep

          8  a level playing field with no exemptions.

          9                 It is easier to comply to Intro. 256,

         10  easier to enforce Intro. 256, and we'll protect

         11  individuals that are not taken into consideration by

         12  the exemptions created in Intro. 256, such as

         13  delivery men and women, tradesmen and women, such as

         14  carpenters, plumbers and electricians. These

         15  exemptions may lead to creative ways to exploit the

         16  term non-employee.

         17                 We have to watch out for individuals

         18  that are considered independent contractors. I don't

         19  know if this law as amended will permit people to

         20  work as independent contractors, as some travel

         21  agents do. They're not employed, but they work in

         22  the premises, they get paid, and I'm concerned about

         23  that. So, really, a level playing field means no

         24  exemptions.

         25                 I've heard a lot of information today
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          2  again, that we hear about bars that are going to

          3  lose their smoking customers, but we keep avoiding

          4  the issue that what about mentioning people who will

          5  start patronizing these establishments, the bars,

          6  the bowling allies, who for reasons because they

          7  don't want to deal with secondhand smoke have not

          8  been showing up.

          9                 And with a few seconds left, I'd just

         10  ask you to please consider that the silent majority

         11  clearly wants a level playing field. No exemptions.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         14                 Go ahead, sir.

         15                 MR. TAMAYO: Good afternoon. My name

         16  is Richard Tamayo, and I'm a New York City police

         17  detective. I am all for this bill and I believe that

         18  everyone should deserve a safe working environment

         19  free from secondhand smoke.

         20                 But I hope we don't expect the NYPD

         21  and the Health Department to enforce these laws.

         22                 I am presently in a battle with the

         23  New York City Police Department and making many

         24  enemies on this issue.

         25                 I'm a non-smoker. I've been fighting
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          2  the issue of secondhand smoke in the workplace.

          3  There is a large violation of these laws inside the

          4  New York City Police Department, and the existing

          5  laws in the City for a smoke-free city has failed

          6  non-smokers and city agencies.

          7                 Court TV did a documentary on

          8  Brooklyn North Homicide back in 2001 where it

          9  depicts detectives smoking in public facilities,

         10  inside precincts, also offering cigarettes to

         11  perpetrators or people being interviewed for certain

         12  crimes. I also have tapes of conversations with the

         13  Health Department where they basically tell me that

         14  they feel that their hands are tied because they're

         15  dealing with the city-on-city.  I see that the

         16  Health Department is very eager to uphold the law

         17  for those in the bar and restaurant owners because

         18  it's easy to issue them summonses and get them to

         19  pay the fees, but it's hard to get a city-on-city

         20  agency to issue a fine for them. It's almost like

         21  telling myself to issue a fine to myself, which will

         22  never happen.

         23                 Like I said, I fought this issue for

         24  many years, I've taken it through collective

         25  bargaining, I sent letters even to your office, Ms.

                                                            264

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Quinn. I have not received any response.

          3                 I believe that the Mayor and the City

          4  Council should address smoking issues in the

          5  agencies under their command before playing heroes

          6  to the people in the private sector.

          7                 I also ask that the Mayor use the

          8  same iron fist that he went after those in the City

          9  housing for smoking and taking breaks in front of

         10  250 Broadway and do the same to the New York City

         11  Police Department.

         12                 I know that I'm making many enemies

         13  by doing this, and speaking in front of the City

         14  Council on these issues, but I'm more of a person

         15  looking to save lives on the issue of secondhand

         16  smoking. And that is all I have to say. Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Just, I

         18  did get that letter and I apologize I haven't

         19  replied yet, but we did kind of take it in and went

         20  to look to make sure that smoking in police cars --

         21                 MR. TAMAYO: No, it's basically being

         22  done in police cars --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

         24                 MR. TAMAYO: In facilities.  I mean, I

         25  have an assignment right now where I basically go to
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          2  every precinct in the City, due to my assignment,

          3  and I'm basically subjected to secondhand smoke all

          4  the time, and I act as a voice for all non-smokers

          5  in the Police Department, and they're fearful of

          6  speaking out because of the same issues, I have

          7  dealt with --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Right.

          9                 MR. TAMAYO:-- The resistance through

         10  every rank.

         11                 And I hope that this issue will be

         12  corrected, and if it is corrected, because we all

         13  live by example, and the New York City Police

         14  Department is a government agency, and if we cannot

         15  expect the New York City Police Department to comply

         16  with the rules and regulations as far as the work,

         17  safe workplace, then I don't expect anybody to

         18  uphold the law, as far as it goes with the private

         19  sector.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Absolutely. Thank

         21  you for that letter, and it was useful. I promise

         22  I'll get back to you, just at some point in the

         23  process the issue of whether City cars should be

         24  exempted, so it was actually very useful for me to

         25  be able to say I was reached out to by a police
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          2  officer who raised that very issue. So, thank you.

          3                 MR. TAMAYO: Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sir.

          5                 MR. CVERVO: Yes. My name is Frank

          6  Cvervo. I've been here before. I want to thank

          7  everyone for their hard work regarding this

          8  amendment.

          9                 I just want to talk about a couple of

         10  issues that I heard. I keep hearing constantly, is

         11  money. How much business we're going to lose, and

         12  how they think that a lot of people are going to be

         13  hanging out in the street and making trouble

         14  because, you know, they're smoking outside.

         15                 The first thing, the money issue,

         16  people say that they're going to lose money, but if

         17  that's the business that is hurting people, then

         18  maybe we should think about changing the business

         19  that we have.

         20                 They complain about waiters and

         21  waitresses and bartenders that have that choice to

         22  work there, but they also have a choice to change

         23  their business, and, you know, if having a bar kills

         24  thousands of people a year, then maybe they should

         25  change their business and make that choice
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          2  themselves also.

          3                 So, as you can see that's not going

          4  to be quite easy.

          5                 The other part of, you know, the fact

          6  that people are going to be hanging out in the

          7  streets and making noise or whatever it is, you

          8  know, that's a very small price to pay for thousands

          9  of lives that will be saved.

         10                 I have a sister that works and she

         11  takes care of people that are dying of cancer and

         12  emphysema and different, you know, life or death,

         13  you know, they're going to die, and so she

         14  administers their pain killing stuff, and she tells

         15  me the worst death is emphysema because you can give

         16  them oxygen, you can give them painkillers, and yet

         17  they're still in pain, they're still choking, and at

         18  the end, by the time of death their vessels actually

         19  explode, which is a really horrible, painful death.

         20                 A lot of people don't realize that

         21  that's what we're up against, most of us. And it's

         22  not just cancer of the lungs, but emphysema, heart

         23  attack, everything to do, a lot of different

         24  diseases. And so if we're worried about money and

         25  how many, ten percent or 20 percent we're going to
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          2  lose, you know, think about all the health and

          3  medical bills that you'll be saving upon. A lot of

          4  people have small businesses and they, you know,

          5  they make a couple of thousand dollars in their

          6  lifetime, and they don't realize that at the end of

          7  it all when they end up in the hospital on a

          8  respirator, they spent all their life savings, and

          9  they have nothing left.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay, thank you

         12  all very much.

         13                 Reverend Dr. Charles S. Norris. Sr.,

         14  Alex Strauss are the final two witnesses in support

         15  of the bill.  And then the final, final witness, and

         16  that is another slip I don't know about, is

         17  following these two gentlemen, will be Fernando

         18  Calvo, who is in opposition to the bill.

         19                 Whoever would like to start. Why

         20  don't you go ahead, sir.

         21                 REVEREND NORRIS: Thank you for the

         22  opportunity to testify at this smoke-free work

         23  environment in New York City. I commend the New York

         24  City Council Committee on Health under the

         25  leadership of you, Councilwoman Quinn, for convening
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          2  this very important public hearing and protecting

          3  New Yorkers from secondhand smoke in the workplace

          4  because all New Yorkers deserve a safe, healthy

          5  smoke-free work environment.

          6                 My name is Reverend Charles S.

          7  Norris, Sr., I'm Pastor of Bethesda Missionary

          8  Baptist Church in Jamaica, I also serve as the

          9  Executive Secretary of Southeast Queens Clergy for

         10  Community Empowerment, a faith-based ecumenical

         11  organization empowering southeast Queens.

         12                 The Southeast Queens Clergy for

         13  Community Empowerment has a combined membership

         14  totaling over 80 pastors and ministers representing

         15  250,000 parishioners. I also serve on the Executive

         16  Committee of the Jamaica Branch of the NAACP.

         17                 As a religious leader who believes in

         18  speaking to the spiritual civic and political and,

         19  yes, health needs of our community, I'm here today

         20  to urge you to pass the strongest form of Smoke-free

         21  Workplace Act to protect all workers from secondhand

         22  smoke.

         23                 Secondhand smoke in the workplace is

         24  an environmental injustice that is above and beyond

         25  politics beyond no one, because no one should be
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          2  forced to breathe secondhand smoke, which causes

          3  death in order to keep a job.

          4                 It is now time to adopt and implement

          5  a public policy to equally protect all workers from

          6  secondhand smoke. It is statistically alarming that

          7  secondhand smoke kills more than 40,000 non-smokers

          8  nationwide, including 1,000 New York City community

          9  members.

         10                 This is especially a problem for

         11  Southeast Queens communities, since African

         12  Americans and Latinos have significantly higher

         13  rates of mortality and illness caused by smoking and

         14  secondhand smoke, including asthma, lung cancer and

         15  heart disease.

         16                 This disproportionate affect on

         17  people of color can also be seen in the workplace

         18  environment as well.

         19                 According to the Surgeon General's

         20  report on tobacco use among racial and ethnics

         21  groups, African Americans are least likely to work

         22  in a completely smoke-free workplace.

         23                 Furthermore, as has been duly noted,

         24  there is a disproportionate affect on hospitality

         25  workers such as wait staff and hostesses who are 50
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          2  percent more likely to get lung cancer than other

          3  workers, even after taking their own smoking habits

          4  into account.

          5                 According to, according, once again,

          6  to the Surgeon General's report, people of color are

          7  over-represented in the food service and hospitality

          8  industries. We need mandates of public policies on

          9  this side to help protect all workers' rights.

         10                 Finally, I strongly urge passage of

         11  the smoke-free workplace act, because all workers

         12  deserve a safe health, smoke-free working

         13  environment, regardless of what job they may have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         15  much, Reverend.

         16                 MR. STAVIS: Good afternoon. Sorry.

         17  Good afternoon. My name is Alex Stavis. Good

         18  afternoon. My name is Alex Stavis. I thank you much

         19  for giving me the opportunity to speak again on this

         20  terribly important issue, and I appreciate that

         21  you've taken so much time out of your busy schedules

         22  to listen to all of us.

         23                 We all know smoking is a time bomb,

         24  it's a killer. As you aptly and correctly have said,

         25  no different in a way than asbestos and diesel than
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          2  any of a number of other carcinogens that we are

          3  working.

          4                 We all know that the government has

          5  classified as a carcinogen. There are only eight

          6  items, tobacco smoke being one of them.

          7                 We talked about cost before, how

          8  people may lose livelihoods and all. I want you to,

          9  if you haven't ever done it, please pass on to your

         10  colleagues, your esteemed colleagues, especially

         11  those in support of the bill -- excuse me,

         12  especially those not in support of the bill, as

         13  those who oppose the bill, to go into a hospital and

         14  see what a cancer ward is. See what the people like

         15  are suffering there. Talk to some of their hospital

         16  administrators to see what it costs also.

         17                 I lost a relative about a year and a

         18  half ago to cancer. I would hate to tell you what

         19  that relative's hospital bills cost. And doesn't

         20  matter what hospital, we all know what they cost

         21  from the trip in in the ambulance, from the person

         22  who has a problem, say of bronchitis or respiratory

         23  tract infection or a respiratory tract attack, such

         24  as an asthma attack, through when they've come out

         25  of the hospital, including the cost to the emergency
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          2  room and stay in the hospital.

          3                 I urge you as such, please pass the

          4  bill, preferably with no exemptions so that it is a

          5  level playing field and so that all people do work

          6  in a safer environment.

          7                 And by the way, someone talked before

          8  about a hard day in the office. If anyone talks

          9  about that, I pass on that you try going to one of

         10  the City's recreation centers where they've got

         11  weights, gyms, pool, good way to get a high without

         12  smoking, good way to be much healthier than without

         13  smoking and PS, a lot cheaper, $75 a year for most

         14  of us. A lot cheaper than it cost, than even a

         15  month's cigarettes would cost.

         16                 I work as an engineer full-time. I

         17  submit to you that there is no, I repeat, no, I

         18  repeat, no way to make any equipment do a job

         19  perfectly. We all know that no matter what it is,

         20  and hence, these indoor clean air machines, they

         21  won't work because among other things, whose going

         22  to make sure they're all kept clean? Whose going to

         23  make sure they're kept on? We know this is a

         24  problem.

         25                 Take a look, for instance, at any
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          2  piece of equipment in your house, does fail

          3  eventually, and it probably takes you time to get it

          4  fixed, from a refrigerator to the stove to the phone

          5  and answering machine. Fixed because it may take

          6  time to get the parts, get someone to fix it.

          7                 When I go out, I have to make sure

          8  there's a place no smoking because I can't be around

          9  smoking, and it would be more money coming to other

         10  places, I and others, if we do pass the bill as it

         11  is, was originally written. Hence, please pass the

         12  bill in a hurry. Thank you for your time.

         13                 Let us again be leaders as we have,

         14  as the New York City government has been in the

         15  past.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         17                 Council Member Stewart has a

         18  question.

         19                 MR. STAVIS: Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I have a

         21  question for the Reverend.

         22                 Have you done any quick survey of

         23  your parishioners as to how, if there's a response

         24  about this legislation?

         25                 REVEREND NORRIS: No, not in my
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          2  congregation specifically, but in our neighborhood

          3  we have talked about how badly this smoke situation

          4  is, and how many of our people in our community

          5  should really not be smoking, and we should not be

          6  exposed to secondhand smoke.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And do you

          8  think the Department should be doing some sort of

          9  awareness campaign about this --

         10                 REVEREND NORRIS: It would be very

         11  good if they did. Very good.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you both

         14  very much. I appreciate your spending so much time

         15  waiting for your opportunity to testify, and we're

         16  going to hear from our final witness, Fernando

         17  Calvo.

         18                 MR. CALVO: Just start? Am I on?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure. If the light

         20  is off, the mic is on.

         21                 MR. CALVO: Green light's on. I'm on.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Is the red light

         23  on?

         24                 Push the button in. Press it again.

         25                 MR. CALVO: There? This is all right?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes, great.

          3                 MR. CALVO: Yes, thank you for

          4  allowing me to speak in this. My name is Fernando

          5  Calvo. I've never spoken to a City Council before.

          6  I'm a resident of Brooklyn.

          7                 What I find inconceivable about this

          8  measure is that there seems to have been no public

          9  mandate prior to Mr. Bloomberg's election to have

         10  such a bill, such a law passed. The few polls that

         11  have been published on the show, the overwhelming

         12  majority of New Yorkers do not want to change the

         13  tacit agreement which the entertainment industry and

         14  the bar scene had established with former Mayor

         15  Giuliani.

         16                 There is nothing in the existing laws

         17  that preclude a bar or a restaurant or any place be

         18  non-smoking. No one is trying to force people to

         19  allow smoking everywhere. That's the sanctity of

         20  property rights that were brought up earlier. The

         21  arrangement which we've been living under for the

         22  past years has been working. Some bars are

         23  non-smoking, some restaurants are non-smoking. Not

         24  all bars serve the same clients. Each bar has a

         25  different clientele.
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          2                 There are cafes in SoHo, in

          3  Williamsburg, Brooklyn, in the East Village, that

          4  serve coffee and crumb cake, and everybody in there

          5  is smoking with their laptops. That's why we go to

          6  SoHo, to spend $15 on a tiramasu and a cappacino, so

          7  we can sit with the people we like and do the things

          8  we want.

          9                 You're always going to have more

         10  public opposition or public discourse from the

         11  zealots who want to ban everything for everyone. I

         12  don't quite understand how 15 months after the

         13  tragedy of 9/11, when the City is now rebuilding,

         14  when the City has in an impressive way unified come

         15  together, why the Mayor would want to introduce such

         16  a divisive issue at such a bad time, right before

         17  the holidays when we have a looming Transit strike,

         18  the City's economy is not at its best, we have high

         19  unemployment, and there's something very obstinate

         20  about the way the Mayor has gone about doing this.

         21  He has never listened to the actual citizens. He has

         22  never wanted to hear us speak. He has repeatedly

         23  announced that the law is a done deal. Going over

         24  your head. I mean, if I may say, I think it behooves

         25  you as the City Council, I think it is weakening you
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          2  as a political institution in the City to simply

          3  rubber stamp the initiative, a very unpopular

          4  initiative, when there's no urgency to do so.

          5                 I understand the 1994-'95 law

          6  Giuliani passed, but I cannot understand going

          7  further with this when the majority of the

          8  restaurant and bar owners are happy with that

          9  arrangement.

         10                 The reason we go to bars or to these

         11  cafes, these mom and pop places in the East Village,

         12  is because we get to do what we want there. The

         13  people who work there work there in part because

         14  they're party people or they like to smoke. They're

         15  not people who want to work at corporate law firms

         16  necessarily.

         17                 I don't understand why you would want

         18  to create such tension amongst citizens when we're

         19  all getting along so well with the present

         20  formulation of the law.

         21                 Thanks.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Sir, Council Member Stewart has a

         25  question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I have a

          3  simple question for you, a comment and a question.

          4  You said that the bar, the restaurants and bar

          5  owners, they love the 1995 law and really didn't

          6  want to change anything now, but they're not the

          7  majority of the City, and when you speak about the

          8  Mayor, I want you to understand that basically we as

          9  elected officials ask the voice of the people, the

         10  voice of the voiceless, and it's our duty to try to

         11  protect the health and well-being of the general

         12  public. And if the majority, have you done any

         13  studies, have you done any survey as to the general

         14  public, as to whether they want this bill or not?

         15                 MR. CALVO: I haven't done formal

         16  studies, no. I mean, the few polls show that people

         17  are against it. But if you were to simply, if you

         18  and the Mayor were to just go to Third Avenue and

         19  Tenth Street on a Saturday night and walk into a

         20  bar, 80 percent of the people are smoking. That's

         21  who goes to bars late at night in the East Village.

         22  Not all clients are the same.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What I'm

         24  saying basically is that in my district, every

         25  gathering that I go to, I ask the question what do
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          2  you think about this smoke-free law, and 100

          3  percent, the answer is always it's a good bill. And,

          4  you know, by you saying we're not going by the

          5  majority of the people, I beg to differ with you.

          6                 Maybe in Manhattan. I don't know

          7  what's happening in Manhattan, but I know in my

          8  district the majority of people say, listen, this is

          9  a good bill, they do not want to have smoking in

         10  every place that they go to.

         11                 MR. CALVO: If the Mayor and you are

         12  so confident on that, then why not do what

         13  California did and hold a public referendum?

         14                 The Mayor is trying to

         15  surreptitiously slide this in at a very bad time for

         16  the City. The City is vulnerable right now. This is

         17  not the kind of legislation to encourage the slogan

         18  New York is open for business. It's hardly the kind

         19  of legislation which should go with that. Hold a

         20  public referendum. Have every New Yorker go and vote

         21  on it, if you're so confident it speaks for the

         22  people.

         23                 But any kind of prohibition which is

         24  not done through, you know, a public referendum,

         25  you're never going to be sure. I mean, you're simply
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          2  never going to be sure. I am simply trying to speak

          3  for myself, but I know that I speak for a lot of

          4  people, smokers and non, who simply want to be left

          5  alone on this matter.

          6                 I sometimes go to non-smoking

          7  restaurants. That's not a problem for me. I'm glad.

          8  The W Hotel in Grammercy Park has a no smoking

          9  restaurant and lobby, yet they have a nightclub

         10  downstairs with smoking all night. That's because

         11  the people who go to nightclubs all day til 5:00

         12  a.m. want to smoke. You cannot even stop what's

         13  going on at some of the big clubs that are open til

         14  noon, you know, with elicit drugs, and you don't

         15  want us having a cigarette at a little dive bar.

         16                 You're taking a very strange -- the

         17  Mayor seems to be taking a pleasure in taking a

         18  little small joint out of blue collar people's

         19  lives. I mean why? So, a couple of steel workers go

         20  to a tavern and watch Monday Night Football having a

         21  couple cigarettes, why does the Mayor want to

         22  intervene there?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, I don't

         24  think he wants to intervene there, he wants to

         25  protect the interests and the health of the workers.
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          2  That's the main interest here.

          3                 MR. CALVA: But you have bags and bags

          4  of petitions and letters from workers at these bars,

          5  prior to the bill's introduction, asking you to do

          6  this. No, you don't. You really don't. I mean there

          7  is no public mandate for this, especially from the

          8  kind of people who go to bars and restaurants. I

          9  mean that's particularly the kind of people who

         10  don't want this.

         11                 Yes, you may have people ban it north

         12  of 14th Street, I don't know, but it makes no sense

         13  to be so comprehensive about something so subtle.

         14  Every block in the City is different. It's a free

         15  exchange that's allowed New York to be so different

         16  from the rest of the country. We are different than

         17  Los Angeles and California. Those are driving

         18  cities. This is city of interaction where everybody

         19  figures out and compromises. Every ten minutes you

         20  need to compromise and figure out the fabric of the

         21  City. I don't understand why something from a top

         22  should be imposed on this like this, especially when

         23  the Mayor has really not done a good job of coming

         24  public with this. He is sort of hiding on this

         25  issue.
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          2                 I mean, the City Council should

          3  stand, you know, for something besides just a rubber

          4  stamp to whatever Mr. Bloomberg proposes. He is not

          5  the founder and CEO of New York, he is the 108th

          6  Mayor, he's our custodial servant, this is not his

          7  private company. He holds private property very

          8  dearly when it comes to his business, but not when

          9  it comes to the rest of the City. I don't

         10  understand. Honestly, it's a property issue.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         12                 MR. CALVO: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 That was our final witness and this

         16  hearing is adjourned.

         17                 (The following written testimony was

         18  read into the record.)

         19

         20  Written Testimony Of:

         21  Vikki Barbero

         22  Vice Chair

         23  Community Board 5

         24  Chair, Public Safety/Quality of Life Committee

         25
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          2  I have been involved in quality of life issues since

          3  coming on this board approximately a decade ago. At

          4  the first full board meeting I attended, a now

          5  well-known member of the community came to the

          6  public session to speak about the problems and

          7  impact that clubs were having on and around the 20th

          8  street area. At my first Quality of Life Committee

          9  meeting I remember the issues that were being

         10  brought to the board: I.e., clubs in the Flat Iron

         11  District and the negative impact they were having on

         12  both businesses and residents in the area.

         13                 The problems involved the noise

         14  emanating from inside the establishment, usually due

         15  to the lack of adequate soundproofing, but the major

         16  complaints were those regarding activity outside on

         17  the sidewalks and in the street.

         18                 They ranged from congestion in the

         19  streets themselves, blocking emergency vehicles in

         20  particular, to loud and rowdy patrons in the early

         21  hours of the morning, creating problems on the

         22  street and making it virtually impossible to get a

         23  reasonable night's sleep. Frustrated slee0deprived

         24  residents came to the board and to the Quality of

         25  Life Committee, begging us to help them find a way
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          2  to deal with the assault that was being inflicted on

          3  them. Since that time, this has continued to be the

          4  number one quality of life problem in this area and

          5  in several other neighborhoods in our board.

          6                 Over the years, in addition to

          7  hearing the plight of the residents, we have also

          8  learned of some of the difficulties bar and club

          9  owners have had trying to address such

         10  concerns...probably the one thing we hear the most

         11  is their frustration in receiving "disorderly

         12  premise" and "failure to control crowd" violations

         13  when they have called the police to handle street

         14  problems. Since community boards look at summonses

         15  and violations when establishments are up for

         16  renewal of their liquor licenses, it is a Catch 22

         17  for the establishments to call the police to help

         18  with problems on the sidewalk and in the streets.

         19                 When Community Board Five learned of

         20  the Mayor's Intro. No. 256- in relation to the

         21  prohibition of smoking in public places which lifts

         22  the exemption for bars, lounges and nightclubs, we

         23  looked at this issue specifically as to the impact

         24  it would have on the quality of life in our

         25  communities.
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          2                 Our city, and particularly the

          3  mid-town area, is unique. Our physical make-up and

          4  density as compared to other states and cities

          5  cannot and should not be compared. The combination

          6  of businesses the residents coexisting side by side,

          7  above, and across from clubs, bars and lounges is

          8  probably not like any other city, and certainly not

          9  to the same degree.

         10                 And, while we commend the Mayor for

         11  his concern for the health of employees and patrons

         12  of such establishments, from a quality of life

         13  standpoint, we agree and strongly support the

         14  position that if the present smoking ban was

         15  expanded to include bars, lounges and clubs,

         16  thousands of residents will be adversely impacted by

         17  forcing smokers into the streets. Owners will have

         18  no legal authority to prohibit any activity on the

         19  public streets outside and around their

         20  establishments and neighborhoods will be faced with

         21  regular nightly mayhem on their streets, especially

         22  during early morning hours.

         23                 We ask the City Council to support

         24  Community Board Five's position not to include bars,

         25  lounges, and clubs in the smoking ban and more
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          2  importantly, to hear the pleas of the residents who

          3  have expressed their concern. It seems inevitable

          4  that already existing problems that negatively

          5  impact their quality of life will only be increased

          6  and exacerbated if we are faced with dozens, if not

          7  hundreds, of people going into the street to smoke.

          8                 Thank you.

          9

         10

         11  Written Testimony Of:

         12  Suzanne Sherbell

         13  322 East 90th Street

         14  New York, NY 10128

         15  (212) 410-1471

         16

         17                 Good afternoon, Speaker Miller,

         18  Council Members, panel members and fellow citizens:

         19                 My name is Suzanne Sherbell. I am an

         20  attorney and a writer. I represent no interest

         21  group. I speak today as a concerned citizen, a

         22  native New Yorker and a 20-year resident of the

         23  Upper East Side, in Speaker Miller's district.

         24                 Some of my remarks have been

         25  expressed to Speaker Miller in writing but I would
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          2  like to share my thoughts and experience today

          3  because I have a point of view I have not yet heard

          4  expressed here, although I only attended a portion

          5  of the hearings on October 10 and November 12.

          6                 I address today only the smoking ban

          7  as it will be extended to bars. I also speak today

          8  as a former smoker and as a former bartender with

          9  firsthand experience of what is at stake here. I

         10  also can speak as a 6-year resident of California,

         11  since much has been made of the efficacy of such

         12  legislation there and elsewhere outside New York.

         13  And, finally, I speak as a citizen and as a New

         14  Yorker who would like to see my city's spirit left

         15  intact as well as its democratic and diverse

         16  heritage.

         17                 Though not a smoker at this time, I

         18  am fully aware of the health risks involved having

         19  experienced them firsthand. I also lost my mother to

         20  cancer 14 years ago. I am certainly not pro-cancer

         21  but I do believe too much has been made of the

         22  secondhand smoke issue.

         23                 I have also found that anti-smoking

         24  proponents often blur the distinction between first

         25  and secondhand smoke using statistics from one to
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          2  bolster their arguments regarding the other.

          3                 From my personal experience with

          4  smoking and smokers, I understand the grip of

          5  cigarettes and the difficulty of quitting. I am not

          6  one to dismiss others' weaknesses just because I was

          7  able to overcome my own. I believe everyone his own

          8  timetable in life and quitting is not possible until

          9  the person is ready. The cruelty directed at smokers

         10  can only be explained by the fanaticism behind it.

         11  That workers who smoke are banished to the street to

         12  smoke is a disgrace. Workers who smoke should be

         13  accommodated in a civilized manner and should be

         14  given access to dignified places to take a break.

         15  What have we signed on for? What have we become?

         16                 Personally, I am much more concerned

         17  about the health hazards caused by the toxic fumes

         18  spewed into our environment. I think we should be

         19  careful before we jump on the secondhand smoke

         20  bandwagon primarily because it's so easy to demonize

         21  and exclude smokers from our public places and then

         22  we get to feel good about what we're doing for

         23  health. But this extreme measure has not really been

         24  thought through. Individual rights and

         25  responsibilities are fading fast in my lifetime.
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          2  Many choices in life involve risk and tradeoffs. As

          3  a bartender I was glad to trade the potential hazard

          4  for the relaxed comraderie found only in bars and

          5  which is not unrelated to the enjoyment of smoking

          6  and the generally freed-up environment that a bar

          7  often offers. The anti-smoking lobby has

          8  demonstrated tremendous arrogance and cruelty toward

          9  smokers.

         10                 People who are concerned about

         11  secondhand smoke can choose not to go to bars where

         12  smoking is permitted. Their options are many.

         13  Smoking need not be banned entirely to accommodate

         14  the preferences of non-smokers.

         15                 I propose that there is a

         16  social-cultural component involved here that is not

         17  being addressed. Framing this issue solely as a

         18  health issue in the most limited sense is to ignore

         19  the importance of the social context of smoking.

         20                 There's more to our health than the

         21  state of our lungs. Much more. What kind of city

         22  would we create where people can't relax and smoke

         23  in a bar with friends?

         24                 If people don't like what they see on

         25  one channel, they are free to change the channel.
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          2  They ought not have the right to determine

          3  everything that is on the air-waves. Is it

          4  reasonable or desirable to accommodate everyone's

          5  sensitivities at the expense of our freedoms? What's

          6  next? Perfume?

          7                 I have heard nothing mentioned

          8  regarding the health of the smoker. While initially

          9  a matter of personal choice, smoking quickly

         10  transforms into a health problem for the smoker, a

         11  problem of addiction. And although legal, smoking is

         12  being treated as if it were criminal.

         13                 In light of their needs, the blanket

         14  ban on smoking in all public places, including bars,

         15  would essentially exclude many smokers from our

         16  social life, isolating and marginalizing them,

         17  denying them basic social freedom.

         18                 That isolation endangers both the

         19  individuals so isolated and the community at large.

         20                 New York has been going through hard

         21  times. We need all our citizens present and engaged

         22  and connected. This is not a time to essentially

         23  restrict access to public places. We need people's

         24  needs met but that extends to smokers, because they

         25  are people too.
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          2                 Furthermore, I posit that people's

          3  social needs are as important as, dare I say more

          4  important than, the fleeting potential hazard posed

          5  by exposure to secondhand smoke particularly when

          6  those sensitive folks have other options.

          7                 Further, framing the issue as a

          8  workers' health issue is thoroughly disingenuous and

          9  was done to pull well-meaning people into the

         10  smoking-ban camp. The number of affected workers in

         11  restaurants with smoke-free dining rooms is

         12  minuscule and, when compared to the impact of a

         13  total smoking ban on the social life of our city, a

         14  very social city indeed, and to the valid concerns

         15  of bar owners and finally to the impact on the lives

         16  of smokers themselves, the effect on the workforce

         17  is of no moment.

         18                 Where is the sense of proportion,

         19  balance and rationality?

         20                 The hysteria and punishing attitude

         21  of the anti-smoking camp does not benefit this city

         22  and its people. Having worked for five years in a

         23  restaurant with a smokefree dining room, I know that

         24  the waiters and bus people were minimally exposed,

         25  entering the bar area as they do in only the most
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          2  fleeting, momentary way.

          3                 As for bartenders, we choose the job

          4  knowing full well what goes with the territory. Many

          5  of us are smokers ourselves, if only occasionally.

          6  To expect or demand smoke-free bars to work in would

          7  be to contravene the spirit of the social milieu we

          8  have come to expect and desire from our bars, which

          9  are fundamental public gathering places in our city.

         10  Has anyone actually polled the regular patrons, both

         11  smoking and non-smoking, of our bars?

         12                 Much has been made of how well these

         13  kinds of extreme measures have "worked" in other

         14  locales. I propose that comparing New York to Los

         15  Angeles misses the mark.

         16                 These are very different places and

         17  what works there does not necessarily translate to

         18  here. They are vastly different cultures, with

         19  different climates, geography, lifestyle and needs.

         20                 New York is not a suburban mall town

         21  and let's not turn it into one, sanitized and

         22  looking like everywhere else. New York is a city

         23  with vibrant street and social life and much of the

         24  city's heart is in its bars and not on its freeways.

         25                 Bars have always been for smokers.
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          2  That's what people do there. They drink, they smoke,

          3  they relax, they talk. Where is the harm in that? If

          4  that doesn't suit you, go somewhere else. But don't

          5  push these decent people out of their haven and

          6  their point of social contact and personal

          7  expression. It's bullyism and although quite

          8  fashionable these days, we need not indulge such

          9  base instincts. We're NEW YORKERS. We are INCLUSIVE.

         10  That is our spirit. That's our heritage. It's what

         11  makes us stands out from all other places.

         12                 Accommodation and balance are words

         13  increasingly absent from our civic conversation. New

         14  York is special because it tolerates, indeed

         15  welcomes diversity like no other place in the

         16  country. It goes against who we are and what we

         17  represent to not accommodate smokers. They are part

         18  of our community and have rights too. Smokers vote,

         19  pay taxes, sit on juries, fight our wars and

         20  contribute handsomely to our rich life.

         21                 "Zero tolerance" as a battle cry is

         22  not as appealing as it might seem at first blush.

         23  The heavy hand toward smokers, and the social

         24  fundamentalism underlying the total ban is not a

         25  positive trend. The world created by such an
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          2  ideology would be a very cold and ultimately

          3  dangerous one indeed. Fundamentalism of all kinds is

          4  destroying our world.

          5                 Our protection does not lie in

          6  sanitizing our world or by exerting the tyranny of

          7  the majority. Our security is in our democratic

          8  heritage. We put ourselves at risk when we undermine

          9  our freedoms. That is what we do when we trample on

         10  the rights of the minority folks among us. New York

         11  is a great city. One of the things that makes it

         12  great is its tolerance and big heart. New York has

         13  always been big enough to accommodate varied needs

         14  and desires and modes of expression. How will we

         15  define ourselves in the future?

         16                 I understand that it is too late to

         17  urge the members of this council, who have already

         18  made their deals in the backroom, so to speak to

         19  think very carefully about this issue and to take a

         20  stand for the preservation of our rights:

         21  individual, social and the rights of the minority.

         22  But I continue to urge the public to say yes to

         23  freedom, responsibility, fairness, balance and the

         24  right, after all, to be left alone.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2

          3

          4  Written Testimony Of:

          5  David Palmer

          6  Theresa Cassiack

          7  New York Public Interest Research Group

          8

          9                 Intro. 256-A.

         10                 IN THE NEW YORK CITY COUNCIL,

         11  INTRODUCTION 256-A. INTRODUCED BY COUNCILMEMBERS

         12  QUINN, ET AL.

         13                 AN ACT to amend the administrative

         14  code of the city of New York, in relation to the

         15  prohibition of smoking in public places and places

         16  of employment.

         17                 SUMMARY OF PROVISIONS:

         18                 This bill amends the existing New

         19  York City Clean Indoor Air Act of 1995 in such a

         20  manner that prohibits smoking in virtually all

         21  workplaces and public places, including restaurants,

         22  schools, daycare centers, health care facilities,

         23  billiard parlors, auditoriums, zoos, theatres,

         24  retail stores, public transportation facilities, and

         25  most bars.

                                                            297

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 The only exemptions the bill allows

          3  are cigar bars and owner-operated bars that do not

          4  have non-owner employees. In addition, separately

          5  ventilated, negatively pressurized rooms in some

          6  bars would be made available to smokers, however no

          7  employee could be required to work in such a room.

          8  In some cases, private social clubs would also be

          9  exempt.

         10                 STATEMENT OF SUPPORT:

         11                 Independent scientific experts have

         12  long concluded that secondhand smoke (the smoke that

         13  comes from the burning end of a cigarette or the

         14  smoke exhaled by smokers) from tobacco can cause

         15  disease and death in healthy non-smokers. In 1986,

         16  the U.S. Surgeon General concluded that secondhand

         17  smoke was a cause of disease, including lung cancer,

         18  in healthy non-smokers. In 1993, the U.S.

         19  Environmental Protection Agency listed secondhand

         20  smoke as a Group A carcinogen - a known human

         21  carcinogen.

         22                 A smoke-free workplace law can help

         23  protect workers - particularly restaurant and bar

         24  workers - as well as nonsmoking members of the

         25  public from the health hazards posed by exposure to
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          2  tobacco smoke.

          3                 Moreover, smoke-free workplaces will

          4  help the 7 in 10 smokers who want to quit smoking by

          5  providing them an additional environment free from

          6  the pressure and temptation to smoke. The Surgeon

          7  General has stated that such workplace smoking

          8  prohibitions have been shown to decrease daily

          9  tobacco consumption and to increase smoking

         10  cessation among smokers.

         11                 Legislation is seldom perfect, and it

         12  is not our intention to decry the minor compromises

         13  and accommodations necessary to gain broad support

         14  for this important, life-saving legislation. But

         15  there is one flaw in Intro. No. 256a that should be

         16  corrected at the earliest opportunity.

         17                 Section 10 of this bill amends

         18  Section 17-505, subdivision h of the existing

         19  chapter. This section was originally intended to

         20  allow smoking at private functions, such as wedding

         21  receptions or corporate meetings, held in enclosed

         22  rooms, defined in the laws as "a room completely

         23  enclosed on all sides by solid floor to ceiling

         24  walls."

         25                 The amendment transforms this
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          2  exemption into something altogether different. Bars

          3  are added to the list of facilities eligible for the

          4  exemption and, rather than happy events like

          5  weddings or bar mitzvahs, the occasion for such

          6  exemption is an event promoting tobacco products.

          7  These promotions are to take place in an "enclosed

          8  room" Regrettably Section 2 of this bill repeals the

          9  definition of "enclosed room" found in the current

         10  law at 17-502j and no new definition is provided.

         11                 The effect of this amendment will be

         12  to allow the tobacco industry to continue its

         13  aggressive promotional activities in bars. New York

         14  City bars currently provide a friendly environment

         15  in which the tobacco companies can market their

         16  products to their key target group - young adults

         17  between 20 and 30.

         18                 Tobacco companies spend hundreds of

         19  millions of dollars every year promoting their

         20  brands in thousands of bars and clubs across the

         21  country. Examination of internal industry documents

         22  reveals how important this tactic is. A 1998

         23  competitor assessment by Philip Morris estimates

         24  that RJR Tobacco alone spent $80 million a year

         25  nationwide promoting Camel and Winston cigarettes in
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          2  bars. A 1997 internal industry document includes a

          3  partial list of 69 bars in New York City

          4  participating in programs with one or another

          5  cigarette brand. The number today is probably

          6  substantially higher.

          7                 Typically, for these promotions,

          8  cigarette makers underwrite entertainment,

          9  distribute free samples to patrons and provide to

         10  the proprietor branded back bar materials such as

         11  napkins and glasses. The main purpose of the events

         12  is to distribute product samples to potential new

         13  customers and collect names and addresses so that

         14  consumers can be added to promotional mailing lists.

         15                 This amendment will allow these

         16  practices to continue. But they will continue at a

         17  cost. Every time a tobacco company underwrites one

         18  of these events, this great law will, essentially,

         19  be repealed. Patrons and workers in the facility,

         20  regardless of their smoking status or their personal

         21  preference, will be exposed to deadly secondhand

         22  tobacco smoke.

         23                 The tobacco companies will sponsor

         24  hundreds, if not thousands, of these events every

         25  year. We believe this is too high a cost to pay to
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          2  allow the tobacco companies one more way to promote

          3  use of their deadly products. NYPIRG urges the

          4  Council to enact Intro. No. 256a at its meeting next

          5  week and to repeal Section 10 as soon thereafter as

          6  is practicable.

          7                 The science is clear - secondhand

          8  smoke causes disease and death for some nonsmokers.

          9  Government policy must be based on that science.

         10  NYPIRG supports the reported agreement between Mayor

         11  Bloomberg, Speaker Miller and the sponsors of this

         12  bill to dramatically strengthen workplace

         13  protections by banning smoking.

         14                 This legislation is critical to

         15  protecting the health of workers and the public.

         16  NYPIRG strongly urges your support.

         17

         18

         19  Written Testimony Of:

         20  New York City Citizens Lobbying Against Smoker

         21  Harassment

         22

         23                 STOP THE EXTREMIST SMOKING BANS!!!

         24                 SAY NO TO BLOOMBERG'S SMOKING BAN IN

         25  BARS, POOL HALLS & BINGO HALLS".
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          2                 CHOICE IN NEW YORK CITY?

          3                 Civility calls for accommodation, not

          4  a totalitarian state run by dictators. We live in a

          5  Republic. Tyranny over the minority by the majority

          6  goes against all the principles that the United

          7  States stands for.

          8                 Who owns the restaurants and bars

          9  anyway?? It is certainly not city-owned or public

         10  property. It is PRIVATE PROPERTY where the owner

         11  ALLOWS the public to enter.

         12                 Whether you smoke or not, we call on

         13  all defenders of democracy to join us in denouncing

         14  such government infringement on private property

         15  rights. It is NOT a health issue. It's a freedom of

         16  choice issue.

         17

         18

         19  Written Testimony Of:

         20  Community Board No. 9

         21

         22  November 27, 2002

         23

         24

         25  Joanne B. Koldare, M.Ed
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          2  Director

          3  NYC Coalition for a Smoke Free City

          4  Department of Health

          5  2 Lafayette Street

          6  New York, NY 10007

          7

          8                 Dear Ms. Koldare:

          9                 Please be advised that at our regular

         10  monthly Community Board meeting held on Tuesday,

         11  November 26, 2002, the members of Community Board 9

         12  voted unanimously to support the enclosed

         13  "Resolution to Support a Smoke-Free Work

         14  Environment", and endorses the approval of New York

         15  City Intro. 256, known as the Smokefree Workplace

         16  Act of 2002.

         17

         18                 Sincerely,

         19                 Pearl R. Miles

         20                 District Manager

         21

         22                 Enclosure

         23

         24

         25

                                                            304

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Written Testimony Of:

          3  New York Committee for Occupational Safety and

          4  Health

          5

          6  New York City Council

          7  Intro. No. 256-A

          8  December 13, 2002

          9

         10                 Secondhand smoke hurts everyone.

         11                 The New York Committee for

         12  Occupational Safety and Health (NYCOSH) is a

         13  non-profit organization with a membership of over

         14  200 local unions in the New York metropolitan area.

         15                 NYCOSH believes that the expansion of

         16  the 1995 Smoke-Free Air Act, banning smoking in all

         17  indoor workplaces, including bars, restaurants,

         18  casinos and bowling alleys, is a significant step

         19  towards protecting the health of New York City's

         20  workforce. We urge the Council to adopt the

         21  legislation and commend it for putting the health of

         22  working people and the City's residents first.

         23                 Secondhand smoke has serious adverse

         24  health implications. The fact is, smokers who light

         25  up at work are risking not only their own lives, but
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          2  jeopardizing the health of their co-workers.

          3                 The Environmental Protection Agency

          4  (EPA) estimated in 1998 that workplace exposure to

          5  secondhand smoke will result in up to 700 cases of

          6  lung cancer and as many as 13,000 deaths from heart

          7  disease per year among non-smokers. Another study

          8  found that non-smokers who work around secondhand

          9  smoke increase their likelihood of developing lung

         10  cancer by 34 percent.

         11                 The proposed legislation is aimed

         12  workers who are most at risk from exposure (sic):

         13  bartenders and workers in restaurants, catering

         14  halls, bingo parlors and city owned vehicles.

         15                 According to studies reported in the

         16  Journal of the American Medical Association, levels

         17  of secondhand smoke are 1.6 to 2 times higher in

         18  restaurants and 3.9 to 6.1 times higher in bars than

         19  in office workplaces.

         20                 The same researchers concluded that

         21  "there may be a 50 percent increase in lung cancer

         22  risk among food-service workers that is in part

         23  attributable to tobacco smoke in the workplace."

         24                 Because blue-collar workers are 7

         25  times more likely to smoke than white collar
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          2  workers, and smoke more heavily, smoking can be a

          3  divisive issue among unions.

          4                 We at NYCOSH believe that secondhand

          5  smoke in the workplace is not simply a matter of

          6  preference.

          7                 Many workers do not have a choice

          8  about whether or not to work in a nonsmoking

          9  environment. For bartenders, casino and restaurant

         10  workers, the choice between making a living and

         11  protecting their health is not a rhetorical

         12  question. We do not believe that any worker should

         13  be forced to choose between their job and their

         14  life.

         15                 Furthermore, in accordance with the

         16  principles of industrial hygiene, we believe that

         17  the only effective way of protecting workers is to

         18  eliminate the source of the contamination - by

         19  abolishing smoking in all workplaces, regardless of

         20  preferences of clientele, workers, or employees.

         21                 All smoke is poisonous.

         22                 Secondhand smoke, also known as

         23  environmental tobacco smoke, is an undisputed cause

         24  of illness, disease, and death. A causal

         25  relationship has been established between secondhand
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          2  smoke and lung cancer.

          3                 The EPA classifies secondhand smoke

          4  as a Group A carcinogen, a designation applied to

          5  only 15 other pollutants including asbestos,

          6  arsenic, and benzene. As with other carcinogens,

          7  there is no known threshold at which secondhand

          8  smoke is considered safe.

          9                 In addition to lung cancer,

         10  secondhand smoke causes a wide range of adverse

         11  health effects.

         12                 Secondhand smoke, which consists of

         13  solid particles, liquid droplets, vapors, and gases

         14  that are produced when tobacco is burned, contains

         15  more than 4,700 identified substances, including

         16  poisons and irritants such as carbon monoxide,

         17  ammonia, formaldehyde, hydrogen cyanide, and

         18  nitrogen oxides among which are 43 known or

         19  suspected carcinogens.

         20                 Persons with certain pre-existing

         21  medical conditions, including allergies, asthma,

         22  chronic heart disease, peripheral vascular disease

         23  and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease may be

         24  more susceptible to adverse health effects from

         25  secondhand smoke. Smoke in the workplace causes
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          2  noticeable discomfort, with nearly 2/3 of nonsmokimg

          3  employees reporting some degree of discomfort

          4  resulting from exposure to secondhand smoke. Even

          5  the R.J. Reynolds Tobacco Company found that

          6  secondhand smoke harms human lung function.

          7                 Exposure to secondhand tobacco smoke

          8  is a widespread problem, extending beyond the

          9  workplace. In fact, 88 percent of nonsmokers have

         10  significant levels of nicotine residue in their

         11  blood. This prevalence in exposure undercuts the

         12  arguments of those who claim that smoking is an

         13  issue of "choice." For most people in this society,

         14  it is not. For workers whose jobs require regular

         15  contact with smoke, there is no choice, they are in

         16  even greater jeopardy. The passage of similar

         17  legislation in California demonstrates the positive

         18  effects of eliminating secondhand tobacco smoke.

         19  After enactment of this law which banned smoking in

         20  bars and taverns, a study of Californian bartenders

         21  showed a marked decline in respiratory problems.

         22                 Growing consensus.

         23                 At least nine states have already

         24  recognized the importance of protecting workers from

         25  secondhand smoke. The cities of Los Angeles, San
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          2  Francisco, and San Diego, California passed laws in

          3  1994 banning smoking in all offices, restaurants,

          4  and bars. These bans then became state law in 1998,

          5  protecting the whole of California's workforce.

          6  Localities such as El Paso, Texas and Boulder,

          7  Colorado have also followed suit. Boston lawmakers

          8  are currently considering smoke-free legislation,

          9  and similar measures have been introduced in the New

         10  York counties of Westchester and Suffolk. As you

         11  know, a similar smoking ban was approved in Nassau

         12  county.

         13                 Despite the objections of the tobacco

         14  industry, surveys have shown vast public and

         15  legislative support for these initiatives.

         16                 In March of 2002, nearly 6 out of 10

         17  voters supported the elimination of smoking in all

         18  offices, restaurants and bars. And, despite the

         19  potentially divisive nature of the issue, union

         20  leaders also display support for measures protecting

         21  workers from secondhand smoke, with 48 percent in

         22  support of either a restriction or a ban, and only

         23  eight percent opposed to both a ban and a

         24  restriction.

         25                 A challenge to the tobacco industry.
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          2                 Tobacco companies are pouring

          3  millions of dollars into defeating smoking bans all

          4  over the country. In California, the fight against

          5  the statewide Smoke-Free Workplace Law involved 9

          6  appeal attempts, an $18 million dollar crusade to

          7  turn voters against the law, and a massive public

          8  relations campaign. The tobacco industry predicted

          9  economic disaster in California and claimed that the

         10  government was interfering with the publics' free

         11  will. Ironically, these same arguments were made

         12  prior to passage of laws that banned smoking during

         13  airline flights and in movie theaters.

         14                 Further, in its arguments against

         15  smoke-free legislation, the industry has maintained

         16  that better solutions exist. For example, it claims

         17  that it is unnecessary to ban smoking, since the use

         18  of containment methods and the installation of

         19  proper ventilation systems will satisfy health

         20  concerns. While improved ventilation methods can

         21  reduce exposure, this approach has proven difficult

         22  to implement and is extremely cost-prohibitive.

         23                 The reality is that the

         24  implementation of smoke-free laws would harm tobacco

         25  company revenues. Philip Morris acknowledges this,
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          2  declaring: "Smoking bans are the biggest challenge

          3  [that the tobacco industry] Has ever faced. Quit

          4  rate goes from 5% to 21% when smokers work in

          5  nonsmoking environments.

          6                 A ban on smoking won't hurt jobs.

          7                 The tobacco industry's argument that

          8  a smoking ban will harm businesses is demonstrably

          9  false. After the California smoke-free law passed,

         10  sales at alcohol vending establishments increased

         11  every quarter in 1998, 1999, and 2000.

         12                 In addition, tourism revenues and

         13  employment continued to grow. Here in New York some

         14  of our most popular restaurants, such as the Union

         15  Square Cafe', have banned smoking and subsequently

         16  seen business increase.

         17                 Financially speaking, smoking results

         18  in lost productivity, increased health care costs to

         19  employers as well as higher taxes for the general

         20  public. For workers made ill by exposure to

         21  secondhand cigarette smoke on the job, access to

         22  lost time-wages and health coverage is uncertain.

         23  New York's workers' compensation law denies workers

         24  who are sick from secondhand smoke access to wage

         25  replacement or medical benefits.

                                                            312

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 These workers are left with nowhere

          3  to turn, and are forced to rely on medical

          4  insurance, disability, unemployment benefits, or

          5  welfare. In other words, he social costs of exposure

          6  to secondhand smoke are shifted from tobacco

          7  companies or employers to taxpayers.

          8                 A ban would help workers quit.

          9                 One of the many benefits of a smoking

         10  ban is an accompanied increase in smoking cessation

         11  among workers. Entirely smoke-free workplaces have

         12  been associated with a 29% reduction in tobacco use

         13  among all employees.

         14                 Researchers found that smokers who

         15  worked in communities with strong ordinances were

         16  38% more likely to quit smoking than smokers in

         17  communities with no ordinance. A strengthened

         18  Smoke-Free Air Act would not only protect

         19  nonsmokers, but it would reduce rates of smoking

         20  among tobacco users.

         21                 Health care and secondhand smoke.

         22                 In the year 2000, almost one-quarter

         23  of New York State residents were smokers, less than

         24  the national average. Still, New Yorkers spent more

         25  than 6.3 billion dollars in 1998 on medical care for
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          2  those sick with an illness caused by tobacco use, or

          3  $351 per capita. These statistics account for

          4  smokers alone, and do not account for the doubtless

          5  billions of dollars spent on caring for nonsmokers

          6  sick because they were exposed to secondhand smoke.

          7                 Medical bills for treating

          8  tobacco-related illnesses are often footed by

          9  contractually negotiated medical plans. Treating

         10  smokers and nonsmokers affected by secondhand smoke

         11  consumes an estimated 10% of union health care

         12  plans. Eliminating secondhand smoke can dramatically

         13  reduce health costs, freeing money for increased

         14  wages or added benefits. Unions can (and many do)

         15  protect nonsmoking workers and spend less on health

         16  care by advocating for smoke-free workplaces.

         17                 It's time to protect all workers.

         18                 Today nearly three-quarters of

         19  workers are protected from secondhand smoke by

         20  smoking bans enacted in the last several decades.

         21  The other quarter, comprised largely of food service

         22  workers, casino staffers, and bartenders, put

         23  themselves at risk just to earn a living.

         24                 Blue collar and service workers are

         25  the focus of high levels of tobacco industry
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          2  advertising, promotions, and sponsorships. These

          3  low-wage workers are doubly discriminated against,

          4  being targeted by the tobacco industry and exposed

          5  to smoke at work, in jobs, which, in this uncertain

          6  economy, they are happy to have.

          7                 Imposing a smoking ban on all

          8  workplaces is the only fair and suitable way to

          9  protect workers from secondhand smoke, a poison that

         10  has proved dangerous to human health again and

         11  again. Dr. Ronald M. Davis, in the Journal of the

         12  American Medical Association, summarizes the

         13  injustice of contact with secondhand smoke:

         14                 In June 1993, the US Supreme Court

         15  ruled that the Nevada state prison may have

         16  subjected a convicted murderer to cruel and unusual

         17  punishment (in violation of the 8th Amendment to the

         18  US Constitution) by forcing him to live with a

         19  smoking cell mate. Millions of Americans outside

         20  prison are exposed involuntarily to secondhand smoke

         21  every day, and many of them will suffer the cruel

         22  fate of lung cancer, heart disease, or some other

         23  malady caused by that exposure.

         24                 NYCOSH urges passage of this

         25  legislation. Enactment of this law will avert
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          2  preventable suffering, illness and disease by

          3  eliminating exposure to potent carcinogens and other

          4  toxic substances. Allowing New York City's workers

          5  to be subjected to secondhand smoke is no different

          6  than requiring a worker to inhale solvent fumes

          7  eight hours a day. It's not a job, it's a potential

          8  death sentence.

          9

         10

         11  Written Testimony Of:

         12  Joseph E. Spinnato

         13  President

         14  Hotel Association of New York City

         15

         16                 Good afternoon. My name is Joseph E.

         17  Spinnato and I am the President of the Hotel

         18  Association of New York City. I am also a former

         19  Fire Commissioner of the New York City Fire

         20  Department.

         21                 Our Association consists of 194 of

         22  the City's finest hotels, which contain over 60,000

         23  rooms. The industry employs more than 30,000 people

         24  and the vast majority of these workers are

         25  unionized.
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          2                 The hotel industry in New York City

          3  supported the last two smoking bills which were

          4  adopted by this Council. We supported these bills

          5  because we felt that they appropriately addressed

          6  the needs of our industry. We did testify before you

          7  on October 10, 2002, in opposition to Intro. 256,

          8  which would have banned smoking in all public

          9  places. While we are pleased that the fire safety

         10  concerns we raised at the hearing were addressed,

         11  Intro. 256-a does not address the economic concerns

         12  we raised. On October 10 we said, in sum:

         13                 - We do not dispute the Mayor's

         14  efforts to provide non-smokers with a smoke-free

         15  environment. We do have concerns a ban on smoking in

         16  bars and restaurants will adversely affect tourism

         17  spending in New York City at a time of already

         18  profound industry challenges.

         19                 - Our industry does care very much

         20  for the health and well being of our employees and,

         21  in fact, the hotels financially support a health

         22  care system for our union employees that cannot be

         23  matched anywhere in the country.

         24                 Further, when the massive layoffs of

         25  our workers occurred after the September 11, 2001

                                                            317

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  tragedy due to the precipitous drop in occupancy,

          3  the hotel industry earmarked $5 million to continue

          4  the health insurance of those people who were laid

          5  off.

          6                 - the hotel industry is first and

          7  foremost a service business which is driven by

          8  customer demands and needs. Our aim is to

          9  accommodate all of our guests. Over half of our

         10  hotels which were recently surveyed have over 40% of

         11  their rooms occupied by foreign guests. Also, the

         12  majority of smoking rooms are requested by foreign

         13  visitors. Several of our member hotels have cocktail

         14  lounges or bars which are patronized, for the most

         15  part, by foreigners - foreigners who insist on

         16  smoking. What these hotels tell us is that they

         17  believe that these patrons will disappear if the

         18  lounge or bar becomes a non-smoking venue.

         19                 The economic losses we expect are

         20  based on experience and empirical data. Our

         21  counterpart in Canada, the Hotel Association of

         22  Canada, advised us that when the Canadian Workers

         23  Compensation Board imposed a smoking ban in January

         24  2000, the ban devastated some sectors of the

         25  hospitality industry.
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          2                 The ban remained in effect 80 days

          3  before it was delayed to allow for appropriate

          4  studies of ventilation to occur. During the 80 days

          5  the ban was in place, 920 hospitality industry

          6  employees were laid off, there were 14 business

          7  bankruptcies and $100 million in revenue was lost by

          8  affected businesses. The extent of the business

          9  losses, our Canadian colleagues told me, ranged from

         10  15-85%, depending on the type of hospitality

         11  establishment and thee demographic make-up of the

         12  clientele.

         13                 Ultimately, the Committee of elected

         14  officials appointed to review hospitality industry

         15  studies of use of a ventilation option found that

         16  with appropriate ventilation systems in place,

         17  worker and patron exposure to environmental tobacco

         18  smoke could be rendered statistically significant.

         19                 In the wake of these findings a new

         20  regulation was adopted in January 2002, for

         21  implementation in May of that year. It provides for:

         22                 - Directional airflow to keep smoke

         23  out of the non-smoking area;

         24                 - Negative pressurization using a

         25  minimum rate of 35CFM; as well as the possibility of
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          2  filtration technology (effective at 95 percent on

          3  0.3 micron particulates);

          4                 - Workers only enter the areas

          5  voluntarily, and only on an intermittent basis up to

          6  20 percent of their shift.

          7                 (The regulation can be found at:

          8  Http://www.worksafebc.com).

          9                 More than 350 establishments across

         10  British Columbia have submitted their plans for a

         11  ventilated smoking area. The number is expected to

         12  exceed 1000 establishments by fall 2003. These

         13  renovations have contributed to the British Columbia

         14  economy while truly limiting exposure to secondhand

         15  smoke for patrons and staff alike.

         16                 The ventilation option is a

         17  commercial decision based on the notion that in

         18  order to accommodate smoking patrons the

         19  establishment must invest in ventilation to

         20  drastically limit exposure to secondhand smoke by

         21  staff and non-smoking patrons.

         22                 We understand that a ventilation

         23  option was proposed by members of the Council and

         24  rejected by the Executive. Our member hotels believe

         25  that where a locality in a nearby region, with a
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          2  climate much like our own, experienced such recent

          3  tragic economic outcomes upon imposition of a

          4  smoking ban in bars and restaurants, New York City

          5  should, at the very least, wait until further

          6  studies of the positive effects on workers of proper

          7  ventilating systems can be done and reviewed.

          8                 As much time and attention as the

          9  Council and Mayor have given to this issue to date,

         10  given the stakes, we strongly urge that Intro. 256-a

         11  be tabled until a ventilation option is studied and

         12  adopted.

         13                 Further, we urge that if legislation

         14  must be adopted now prior to completion of these

         15  studies, that all the hospitality industry related

         16  restrictions sunset and only remain in effect until

         17  January 2, 2005.

         18

         19

         20  Written Testimony Of:

         21  Joseph Weaver

         22  78-44 226 Street

         23  Bayside, NY 11364 718 217-8220

         24  weaver@cigarettesmokingkills.com

         25                 Intro 256 A is an excellent one and I
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          2  would like to thank all the council members and the

          3  mayor for finally coming together and choosing

          4  health. This ban is first about the health of

          5  workers, who choose to work in the bar and

          6  restaurant industry.

          7                 And, secondly, for people, like me,

          8  who choose to not stay at home and watch TV, but

          9  instead to go out and enjoy the nightlife. No more

         10  must workers or patron have to make a decision of

         11  work or nightlife and compromised health.

         12                 To all those who don't believe the

         13  science associated with Toxic Tobacco Smoke, I will

         14  try to make it clearer to you. Smoke is smoke,

         15  whether it comes from lit cigarettes, a car's

         16  exhaust, a barbeque, or from fire. IT DOES NOT

         17  BELONG INDOORS. The air we breathe and the Water we

         18  drink are important to good health. Any bad smell in

         19  the air shows that there is something in it, which

         20  ought not to be there. It is a sign of danger," p

         21  104. "It is not good to breathe in a room full

         22  of...smoke," p 105. - William Thayer Smith, Ph.D.,

         23  Primer of Physiology and Hygiene (New York: Ivison,

         24  Blakeman & Co, 1885).

         25                 To all those who say that Cigarettes
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          2  and alcohol goes so well together..And those smokers

          3  are being treated as second-rate citizen. They say

          4  "Don't smokers have a right to drink a beer and

          5  smoke their cigarettes?" I tell you that it is not

          6  the tobacco smoke and the 4000 chemicals that you

          7  enjoy and crave while sipping your beer or wine, but

          8  it is instead it is the Nicotine that plays with

          9  your urges.

         10                 I was a smoker, and I know about

         11  Nicotine Addiction. Smokers can still get their

         12  nicotine fix and enjoy a beer at a local pub by

         13  chewing nicotine gum or by wearing a nicotine patch,

         14  when going to smoke free bars or restaurant. There

         15  are also lozenges that will hit the market to help

         16  with your craving. This way you won't pollute the

         17  air around you and potentially harm others, who

         18  choose not to smoke! Clear air is a common law

         19  right. If this ban does not go into effect, I can

         20  imagine many lawsuits against the state or bar and

         21  restaurant owners from worker and/or patron in

         22  relationship to secondhand smoke and the nuisance

         23  and health problems it causes.

         24                 Smokers want to tell nonsmokers to

         25  open a smoke-free club or stay at home, or they want
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          2  to tell asthmatics and pregnant women that they

          3  don't belong in bars or clubs. Stay at home. They

          4  also say that bartenders can find another job. For

          5  many New Yorkers, including single parents, students

          6  immigrants and others - Working as a waiter and/or

          7  bartending is the single best paying and most

          8  flexible jobs available.

          9                 I can't see any benefits at all to

         10  allowing smoking in any public space. Please lets

         11  just get this over with and ban tobacco smoke in all

         12  public places. Big Tobacco feels differently. They

         13  have lie (sic) to us before and have made psuedo

         14  research to disprove all that we do. And now they

         15  claims (sic) that protecting workers from secondhand

         16  smoke will hurt the restaurant and bar business and

         17  secondhand smoke is not a hazard.

         18                 In 1993, the Environmental Protection

         19  agency issued a report classifying secondhand smoke

         20  as a Group A carcinogen. Big Tobacco filed a suit

         21  against the report and won.

         22                 Yesterday, the 4th. US circuit court

         23  of appeals ruled in the EPA's favor. Judge Osteen

         24  ruling is now no longer valid. The truth always

         25  prevails. How can so many scientists be wrong?
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          2                 Don't let big Tobacco control us

          3  anymore! Smoke does not belong indoors it IS A GROUP

          4  A CARCINOGEN.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 3:40 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LENORE NAGLE, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 13th day of December 2002.
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         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          LENORE NAGLE
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          9            I, LENORE NAGLE, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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